
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, February 23, 2016 @ 7:00 P.M.

Location: Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg
Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim
Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are
unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via
email lsullivan@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
 Presentation by County Board Supervisor Carl Chenoweth
 Staff report: KPW Update

2. Minutes and Reports:

 Minutes: Finance-01/26/2016; Planning-Jan 11, 2016; Public Works-01/19/2016;
Utilities- 02/09/2016

3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s
agenda)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Council Minutes: February 9, 2016

OLD BUSINESS

5. O-4-2016- An ordinance amending sections 78-206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 of the City
of Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance clarifying sanitary sewer and water lateral
installation requirements for Duplexes and Twin-Homes.
(Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0)

SECOND READING

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



6. R-12-2016: Authorizing Council approval of the resolution establishing policies for the
use of Tax Incremental Financing (TIF). (Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0)

NEW BUSINESS

7. R-13-2016: Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request,
Certified Survey Map (CSM) by Jean Nordlie for property located South of 3415 State
Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission recommends
approval 5-0)

8. R-14-2016: Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson request a conditional use permit approval
for a commercial animal boarding use at 1115 W. Main Street. (Planning Commission
recommends approval 5-0)

9. R-15-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write off
of accounts deemed uncollectible as of December 31, 2015. (Utilities Committee
recommends approval 7-0)

10. R-16-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to execute an
Intergovernmental Agreement for the City of Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment
Facility to participate in an Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed with
the Yahara River Watershed Improvement Network (Yahara WINS) Group. (Utilities
Committee recommends approval 7-0)

11. R-17-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to execute an
Intergovernmental Agreement for the City of Stoughton (Stormwater) to participate in an
Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed with the Yahara River Watershed
Improvement Network (Yahara WINS) Group. (Public Works Committee recommends
approval 4-0)

12. R-18-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the rate of
compensation from $23.42 to $24.42 for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering
Specialist. (Personnel committee recommends approval 5-0)

13. R-19-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated
position description and title change from Streets Superintendent to Director of Public
Works.



(Personnel committee recommends approval 5-0)

14. R-20-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve using $40,000
from the Impact Fees account to help create a trail from Amundsen Park to Stoughton
Hospital. (Finance recommends approval 4-0)

15. R-21-2016: Request to Close Forrest Street for Farmers Market on Saturdays – Stoughton
Community Farmers Market. (Public Works recommends approval 4-0)

15. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By:
Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Paul Lawrence





Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON


Date/Time: Tuesday, February 23, 2016 @ 7:00 P.M.


Location: Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg
Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim
Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are
unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via
email lsullivan@ci.stoughton.wi.us


CALL TO ORDER


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
 Presentation by County Board Supervisor Carl Chenoweth
 Staff report: KPW Update


2. Minutes and Reports:


 Minutes: Finance-01/26/2016; Planning-Jan 11, 2016; Public Works-01/19/2016;
Utilities- 02/09/2016


3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s
agenda)


4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Council Minutes: February 9, 2016


OLD BUSINESS


5. O-4-2016- An ordinance amending sections 78-206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 of the City
of Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance clarifying sanitary sewer and water lateral
installation requirements for Duplexes and Twin-Homes.
(Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0)


SECOND READING


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.







6. R-12-2016: Authorizing Council approval of the resolution establishing policies for the
use of Tax Incremental Financing (TIF). (Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0)


NEW BUSINESS


7. R-13-2016: Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request,
Certified Survey Map (CSM) by Jean Nordlie for property located South of 3415 State
Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Wisconsin. (Planning Commission recommends
approval 5-0)


8. R-14-2016: Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson request a conditional use permit approval
for a commercial animal boarding use at 1115 W. Main Street. (Planning Commission
recommends approval 5-0)


9. R-15-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write off
of accounts deemed uncollectible as of December 31, 2015. (Utilities Committee
recommends approval 7-0)


10. R-16-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to execute an
Intergovernmental Agreement for the City of Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment
Facility to participate in an Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed with
the Yahara River Watershed Improvement Network (Yahara WINS) Group. (Utilities
Committee recommends approval 7-0)


11. R-17-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to execute an
Intergovernmental Agreement for the City of Stoughton (Stormwater) to participate in an
Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed with the Yahara River Watershed
Improvement Network (Yahara WINS) Group. (Public Works Committee recommends
approval 4-0)


12. R-18-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the rate of
compensation from $23.42 to $24.42 for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering
Specialist. (Personnel committee recommends approval 5-0)


13. R-19-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated
position description and title change from Streets Superintendent to Director of Public
Works.







(Personnel committee recommends approval 5-0)


14. R-20-2016: Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve using $40,000
from the Impact Fees account to help create a trail from Amundsen Park to Stoughton
Hospital. (Finance recommends approval 4-0)


15. R-21-2016: Request to Close Forrest Street for Farmers Market on Saturdays – Stoughton
Community Farmers Market. (Public Works recommends approval 4-0)


15. ADJOURNMENT


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By:
Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Paul Lawrence








FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
January 26, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building


Present:
Chairperson Christianson, Alderperson Jenson, Alderperson O’Connor and Mayor
Olson


Others Present:
Finance Director Sullivan, Deputy Treasurer Roberts, Utilities Director Kardasz and City
Attorney Dregne


Absent and Excused:
Alderperson Swadley


Call to order:
Finance Chair Christianson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Communications:
Sullivan stated that the Audit will take place the first week in March. She also discussed
the rental space in the Senior Center annex that is available. This will be a future
agenda item.


Reports / Contingency:
No action taken


Finance Committee Minutes of January 12, 2015:
Motion by Jensen to approve the Finance Committee minutes of December 8, 2015,
second by O’Connor. Motion carried unanimously 4-0.


Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the
withdrawal from the Local Government Property Insurance Fund and initiate
coverage with Municipal Property Insurance Company effective February 1, 2016:
Mayor Olson stated that last summer we were notified that the rates would be
increasing. We were not notified of the amount until January 19th, 2016. The rates
were close to double. Municipal Property Insurance Company has comparable
coverage for a significantly less amount. Sullivan stated that the resolution has been
amended to include the wording “for the City and Utilities”. This policy also covers
Utilities. Motion by O’Connor, to approve the resolution as amended authorizing and
directing the proper City official(s) to approve the withdrawal from the Local Government
Property Insurance Fund and initiate coverage with Municipal Property Insurance
Company effective February 1, 2016, second by Jensen. Motion carried unanimously
4-0.


TIF Policy Draft:
Attorney Dregne and Finance Director Sullivan met to review the TIF guidelines.
Discussion took place regarding the guidelines and the checklist. Mayor Olson stated
that for the section that outlines if more process is appropriate she would like examples
listed of what that would be. It was also offered that in the portion that lists a state
statute to add that the statute is subject to change. Alder Selsor’s suggestions were
discussed. Skeletal guidelines are what was requested by committee and that is what







was brought forward. Every project is unique. Committee directed staff to make
suggested changes and bring back to the next regularly scheduled meeting.


Future Agenda Items:
TIF Policy Draft, Senior Center Annex Rental Space, Retiree Reserve Fund and Bat
Mitigation (Spring 2016)


Adjournment
Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the meeting of the Finance Committee, second by
O’Connor. Motion carried unanimously 5-0. The Finance Committee meeting adjourned
at 6:45 p.m.







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\2-23-2016\Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-11-16.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 11, 2016 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice Chair; Matt Hanna;
Todd Krcma; Michael Maloney; Pat O’Connor and Scott Truehl.
Absent:
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey
Press: None
Guests: AJ Arnett; Ashley Hopfensperger; Todd Nelson; Nicole Hines; Jordan Tilleson; Dennis
Steinkraus; Molly Thomson; Chris Harvey; Jami Harvey; Zach Kirby; Ellie Trotter; Fred Trotter;
Janna Light; Otto Callies; Debra Calles; Robert Arnold and Barbara Arnold.


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of December 14, 2015.
Motion by Hanna to approve the minutes of December 14, 2015 as presented, 2nd by
Truehl. Motion carried 7 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson reported the Common Council approved Ordinances 18 & 19.


4. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of current developments going on in the City. There were no
questions.


5. Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson request a conditional use permit and site plan
approval for a commercial animal boarding use at 1115 W. Main Street.
Scheel gave an overview of the request.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


Barbara Arnold – Registered in support of the request.
Robert Arnold – Registered in support of the request
Debra Calles - Registered in support of the request
Jami Harvey – Spoke in support of the request.
Nicole Hines - Registered in support of the request.
Jordan Tilleson - Registered in support of the request.
Chris Harvey - Registered in support of the request.
Janni Harvey - Registered in support of the request.


Molly Thomson – Spoke in opposition of the request due to the potential for noise.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.
Hanna stated he is in favor of the direction the applicants are going and questioned the
possibility of tabling the request until the applicant’s have submitted all materials.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/11/16
Page 2 of 4


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\2-23-2016\Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-11-16.doc


Scheel stated tabling the request would be appropriate to allow the applicants to pay the
conditional use fee and submit a site plan that meets all the zoning code requirements.


The commissioner’s were all favor of tabling the request until next month.


Motion by Truehl to Table the request to allow the applicant’s to submit the conditional use
permit fee and to submit appropriate plans to meet zoning code requirements, 2nd by Hanna.
Motion carried 7 – 0.


6. Ashley and Tim Hopfensperger request to amend zoning ordinance sections 78-
206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 related to providing water and sewer services to a duplex
and twin home.
Scheel explained the request.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


AJ Arnett spoke in support of the zoning amendment.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


There was a short discussion regarding Public Service Commission requirements and
installation of laterals for new developments vs existing development. The consensus being
that existing developed duplex lots should not be required to install separate laterals until the
duplex is split into a Twin Home as required by the Public Service Commission.


The consensus was to Table the agenda item until next month to allow staff to redraft the
ordinance as described above.


7. Todd Nelson requests certified survey map (CSM) approval to combine the 3 parcels at
324 S. Van Buren and 400 S. Van Buren Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the certified survey map as
presented, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 7 – 0.


8. Todd Nelson requests Specific Implementation Plan approval for the property located
at 400 S. Van Buren Street to accommodate a 14-unit apartment building.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Truehl to approve the specific implementation plan contingent on the staff
review letter dated December 28, 2015, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 7 – 0.


O’Connor questioned the location of the bike rack in the parking garage. Todd Nelson
stated he thought the location would be more secure and safe for bikes.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/11/16
Page 3 of 4


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\2-23-2016\Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-11-16.doc


Truehl noted Police Chief Leck will monitor the site in the future for traffic issues as
discussed at the Public Safety Committee meeting.


Motion carried 7 – 0.


9. Todd Nelson requests conceptual plan review for a multi-family residential
development at Chalet Court.
Todd Nelson explained the request.


The following was discussed:
 The existing platted Chalet Court would need to be vacated;
 Comparing the number of units allowed by the MR-24 district, this property of 1.76


acres would allow 42 residential units;
 Todd Nelson is proposing up to 52 residential units;
 Current zoning is Rural Holding while Planned Development and MR-24 are


proposed;
 Two CSM’s are proposed to allow ownership flexibility;
 Commissioner’s are in favor of small units toward the south and adjacent to the single


family residential;
 There needs to be a good evaluation of stormwater management for this property.


10. Forward Development Group requests preliminary plat concept plan review for Kettle
Park West Phase II. Materials can be viewed at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/kettle-
park-west
Scheel introduced the request.


Dennis Steinkraus gave a presentation of the Kettle Park West Phase II plans. The
presentation can be viewed at the above link.


Dennis plans to have more information at the upcoming meetings.


11. Request to amend ordinance sections 78-206(8)(c), 78-105(2)(g), 78-105(2)(h) and
Appendix C related to the size of an accessory structure for multi-family residential
districts and the number of residential units allowed for multi-family residential.
Scheel explained the proposed ordinance amendment is to conditionally allow accessory
structures greater than 900 square feet in the MR-10 and MR-24 zoning districts and clarify
that that MR-24 district conditionally allows 24 units per acre not per building and the same
for the MR-10 district.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/11/16
Page 4 of 4


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\2-23-2016\Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-11-16.doc


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Maloney. Motion carried 7 – 0.


12. Future agenda items.
Kettle Park West Phase II and specific implementation plans for Phase I properties; Todd
Nelson Chalet Court materials; Twin Home Ordinance Amendment and Comprehensive Plan
Update Schedule.


13. Adjournment.
Motion by Krcma to adjourn at 7:55 pm, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 7 – 0.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael P. Stacey







Public Works Committee
Tuesday, January 19, 2016 @ 5:30 PM
Fire Station Training Room – 401 E Main St


Members Present: Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Paul Lawrence, Tom Selsor and Mayor Olson


Absent & Excused: Sid Boersma


Staff: Street Superintendent Karl Manthe, and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Resident Sylvia Lawrence, Michael Engelberger and Police Chief Leck


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm


1) Communications: Manthe stated: 1) Gjertson St (north of main) was on the 2016 agenda
for pulverization but would like to move the project to 2017 as more extensive work needs to
be done ( i.e. reconstruction, stormwater and sidewalks on the west side).


Mayor Olson stated that Street Superintendent Karl Manthe and Street Foreman Rick
Gullickson (both are retiring in May of 2016) met with the Mayor and Director of Human
Resources Amy Jo Gillingham to work on their job descriptions. Mayor Olson is striving to hire
a replacement and have them work with Mr. Manthe for a month before he leaves.


2) Activity Reports:


Manthe stated that 87 street opening permits were taken out in 2015 which was an increase
over previous years and that a crew is out picking up Christmas Trees and reports include the
following information;


A second snow emergency was called on December 28th with the storm being a wintry mix of
freezing rain, sleet, snow and windy conditions. Crews will be busy.


 Crews were busy salting and plowing during the snow event and removing the snow from
downtown area.


 With the excellent weather, crews have been busy tree trimming and removals. A
contractor was also hired to remove some trees. Stumps will be removed in the spring
depending on the weather.


 With all the rain in December, crews were put patching streets throughout the entire city.
 Crews removed 70 truckloads of fill dirt from behind the cemetery along Riverside Drive to


make room for a “Greenspace Park” that will be completed in the spring.
 Administrative Assistant is keeping busy keeping inventories current for cemetery, trees,


and signs, processing invoices, computerizing employee timesheets and addressing
customer inquiries.


 Fleet Maintenance Manager continues to maintain city wide fleet to make sure it is available
for daily tasks. Fleet Manager has all winter snow & ice removal equipment ready for the
season. Working on repairs to snow removal equipment.


 Parks Department has been cleaning and painting the parks storage area. With the mild
weather, staff has not attempted to make ice for the skating rink at Norse Park. We are at
the point now where the ice rink won’t be open this season.


 Other routine tasks completed during the month include; dumping trash barrels downtown
and in cemeteries, cleaning fleet and garage, checking traffic signals, monitoring water
levels at the Fourth Street Dam, garage safety inspections (fire extinguishers, eye wash
stations, exit lights and fall protection).


Old Business:







3) Veterans Park Tennis Court Project Update – Pickleball Information: Manthe discussed
that the current plan was to strip the court for tennis and two pickleball courts and monitor the
situation throughout this year to make a determination on the fencing. Manthe also checked
with the Finance Director, Laurie Sullivan about funds and none were available from 2015.


Resident, Sylvia Lawrence spoke to the committee stating that she lived next to the park (35ft)
from the tennis court and want some assurance/protection from the city against damage from
tennis balls to property or vehicles. Ms. Lawrence would like the fence to be higher and no
Pickleball allowed as it is very noisy and requested a sound barrier if the game is allowed –
also stating that people can play Pickleball at Martin Luther School.


This issue is still in the discussion phase and will be put on the February agenda.


4) Discussion and Recommendation – Ordinance Section 10-2 Construction Standards –
Chapter 10-2 (d) Street Tree Installation: Manthe informed the committee, that developers
would have three (3) to four (4) choices of trees to select and that the city wanted, according to
the tree inventory, to abide by the 5% rule for any species in prevent devastation to the urban
forest due to diseases. Manthe mentioned that tree availability has decreased due to the fact
that so many trees have been removed because of the emerald ash borer and cities are trying
to replace these trees.


Motion by Selsor, seconded by Lawrence to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the changes of Ordinance Section 10-2 Construction Standards – Chapter 10-2
(d) Street Tree Installation. Motion carried 4-0. (with the Mayor voting yes)


New Business:


5) Approve December 15, 2015 Meeting Minutes: Motion by Lawrence seconded by Selsor
to approve minutes. Motion carried 3-0.


6) Future Agenda Items: Veterans Park/Pickleball, Gjertson Street Construction Plans


Moved by Lawrence, seconded by Selsor to adjourn the meeting at 6:00 pm. Motion
carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant – 1/20/16







 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, January 19, 2016 – 5:00 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen Member David 


Erdman, Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna Olson, 
Citizen Member Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) 
Swangstu.  


  
Excused: Alderperson Greg Jenson. 
 
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E. 
  
Call To Order:  Mayor Donna Olson called the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting Consent 
Agenda items. Discussion Followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the 
motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the following consent 
agenda items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the 
November 16, 2015 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities 
November 2015 Financial Summary, Stoughton Utilities November 2015 Statistical 
Information, Stoughton Utilities Communications, Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual 
Calendar, and the Stoughton Utilities November and December 2015 Activities Report. 
The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The 
Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented 
and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 
approved and placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee October 19, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes. 


 Stoughton Utilities September 2015 Financial Summaries. 


 Stoughton Utilities September 2015 Statistical Worksheet. 


 







 


 
 
STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, January 19, 2016 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 2 
 
Stoughton Utilities Participation In The Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District 
(MMSD) Adaptive Management Program: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities participation in the MMSD Adaptive 
Management Program.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael 
Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member Alan Staats, to approve the 
submittal of the “Preliminary Adaptive Management Request” form to the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources and recommend it to the Stoughton Common Council 
for approval and adoption of the corresponding resolution on January 26, 2016.  The 
motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program.   Discussion 
followed.  Motion by Citizen Member John Kallas, the motion seconded by Alderperson 
Michael Engelberger, to donate $1,000 to the River Bluff Middle School 7th grade 
students for participation in the “Trees For Tomorrow” natural resources specialty 
school.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.   
  
Modifications To The Stoughton Utilities Wastewater And Water Capital 
Improvements Plans:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and 
discussed the modifications to the CIP’s as follows: 
 


Sanitary sewer main ($126,000) and water main ($295,000) on Clyde St. from 
Van Buren St. to Madison St. and limited sanitary sewer main and full water main 
($165,000)  on Van Buren St. from Clyde St. to Harding St. * 


 
Defer sanitary sewer main ($105,000) and water main ($110,000) on Park Street 
from Lynn to Academy to a future year to be determined. * 


 
Sanitary sewer main ($250,000) and water main ($280,000) on Van Buren St. 
from Jackson St. to Main St. 
 
Abandon redundant water main and one water service ($7,000) on Jackson St. 
between Van Buren St. and Harrison St.   


 
 *Previously included in our 2016 CIP. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
 
 
 







 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, January 19, 2016 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 3 
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items: None 
 
Adjournment:  Motion by Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu, the motion seconded 
by Citizen Member David Erdman, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting at 5:20 p.m.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
Stoughton Utilities Director 





		Finance Minutes 01-26-16.pdf

		Planning Minutes 1-11-16.pdf

		PW Min January 19, 2016.pdf

		2016-02-09 2016-01-19 Final Utilities Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the rate of compensation from $23.42 to $24.42
for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist.


Committee Action:
Personnel


Personnel Committee recommends approval. (5-0)


Fiscal Impact: Budgeted funds as approved by Utilities Committee and Common Council


$1.00 per hour=$2080.00


File Number: R-18-2016 Date Introduced: February 23, 2016


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee received a request to approve the rate of compensation change
from $23.42 to $24.42 based on the updated job description previously approved by the Personnel
Committee and Council. The increase would be retroactive to 9/1/2015. The compensation was
reviewed by both the Utilities Accounting Manager and Springsted and,


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on Monday, December 14, 2015 to review the financial
impact of this change and determined there is no financial impact as the compensation change is
approved and budgeted for and,


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval unanimously (5-0) to approve the rate of
compensation to $24.42 for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby authorized and directed to approve the rate of compensation to $24.42 for the position of
Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







Email from Springsted


12/4/2015


Amy Jo,


I have completed the review of the Utilities positions and have the following recommendations:


Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist: 210 points, grade 7= $18.76-$24.70
Electric Systems Supervisor: 405 points, grade 13
Assistant Utilities Director: 570 points, grade 17


Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.


For the training on the SAFE system, I will have Dan Tesch from my office contact you to schedule.


Ann





		12- Resolution Personnel Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist Rate of Compensation Change.pdf

		12-Email from Springsted.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position description and title
change from Streets Superintendent to Director of Public Works.


Committee Action:
Personnel


Personnel Committee recommends approval. (5-0)


Fiscal Impact: Budgeted funds as approved by The Common Council – current position
compensation $82,617.60-Exempt


File Number: Date Introduced: 02-23-2016


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on Thursday, February 11, 2016 to review and discuss the
updated Director of Public Works title and position description and,


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval unanimously (5-0) to the revised position
description and title change from Streets Superintendent to Director of Public Works, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby authorized and directed to approve the revised position description and title change from
Streets Superintendent to Public Works Director.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Street


Classification Title: Director of Public Works Street Superintendent Pay Grade: FLSA: Exempt


Date: December, 1998 July 2014 January 2016 Reports To: Mayor


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to supervise, direct, and coordinate the activities of the Street & Parks Department.
See Revised Job description “Summary of Position”


Essential Duties and Responsibilities All information in this section has been included in the
revised job description. Some wordsmithing has been completed to ensure the accuracy of
the job description. The revised job description includes the feedback from the Current
incumbent, Director of Planning and Development and Director of Utilities.


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.
Other duties may be required and assigned.


 Supervises, directs, and coordinates the activities of the Street & Parks Department; determines program needs
and priorities; coordinates personnel and equipment between job assignments.


 Coordinate and participates in staff hiring’s.


 Determines and implements disciplinary actions.


 Perform employee evaluations


 Supervises the construction and maintenance of city streets, storm sewers, bridges, culverts, parks and other
areas.


 Assist with developing Stormwater Utility Budget


 Supervises the erection of signs and maintenance of street and pavement markings parking lines.


 Supervises the removal, trimming, and planting of Urban Forestry.


 Supervises the daily activities of Parks Maintenance & Mowing


 Supervises the maintenance of park buildings and the Street Department shop.


 Supervises snow removal and sanding operations.


 Prepares and monitors Street Department budget, plans and goals.







 Supervise Street Department Capital Projects, implements long-range plans, and oversees the work of
consultants.


 Provides Staff Reports to Mayor, Common Council, and Public Works Committee.


 Maintains time records; and work orders; prepares operational records and reports.


 Purchases equipment, supplies, and materials as required.


 Supervises the maintenance and repair of vehicles and equipment, including fleet of all City Departments.


City of Stoughton Street Superintendent
Position Description


 Provides information and assistance to the general public; receives and responds to inquiries and complaints as
appropriate; assists the general public with grave site location and selection. Locates graves for burials and
monitors cemetery maintenance.


 Provides training to employees regarding the proper operation of street construction, maintenance, and repair
equipment.


 Serves as ex officio to various committees including public works, tree commission, cemetery board, etc.


 Sets up and takes down voting machines for election. Assist with opening and closing of polls.


 Staff to Public Works Committee, Member of Safety and Health Committee, Technical Advisory Committee,
Cemetery Board, and other City Committees as directed. and staff to Ordinance/Transportation Committee.


 Participates in on going equipment and safety training.


 Administers the Tree Commission, including oversight of volunteer activities and recruitment, adherence to
purchase order policy, competitive bidding procedures, and City purchasing policy, and contract/grant
compliance.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions The
education level and essential job functions have been updated. See the revised job
description.


Bachelors Degree in Civil Engineering High school graduate with a minimum of eight years road construction and
maintenance, heavy equipment operation and maintenance, and related experience, including supervisory
experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and
abilities.


Minimum Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Physical Requirements







 Ability to operate a variety of road maintenance and repair equipment, including heavy equipment and motor
vehicles.


 Ability to push, pull, lift, and carry objects weighing up to 90 50 pounds, including shovels and jackhammers.


 Ability to operate a variety of mechanics and carpentry tools and equipment, including power tools.


 Ability to operate surveying equipment.


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computer, copiers, fax machine, telephone
system, peripherals, calculator, etc.


City of Stoughton Street Superintendent
Position Description


Supervisory Skills


 Ability to assign, supervise, and reviews the work of others.


 Ability to make decisions regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide and calculate decimals and percents.


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including budget reports, meeting minutes, billing
invoices, Council agendas, State statutes and other regulations, policy and procedure manuals, zoning maps,
OSHA standards, street construction blueprints, etc.


 Ability to prepare a variety of documents including purchase orders, budget documents, time sheets, inspection
reports, work orders, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction,
and style.


 Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow instructions.


 Ability to use and interpret road construction terminology.


 Ability to communicate effectively with Street Department and City personnel, consultants, contractors, sales
representatives, volunteer groups, State officials, the general public, and others verbally and in writing.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work effectively in an office environment and at road construction sites with exposure to temperature
variations, precipitation, and machinery noise and vibrations.







The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,
the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both
prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.


_____________________________________ ________________________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


_____________________________________ ________________________________________
Date Date


Council Approved 1-12-99







Director of Public Works


City of Stoughton


SALARY RANGE


$69,870-92,024 Annually


SUMMARY OF POSITION:
The Director of Public Works is a professional management position serving under the direction of the City
Mayor, exercising independent judgment and working with minimal supervision, but seeking direction on
substantive matters related to administration of the Public Works Departments. The position is responsible
for leading and coordinating, through subordinate supervisors and employees, the operations and
maintenance of the staff and infrastructure controlled under the Department of Public Works such as:
Streets, Parks Maintenance, Fleet Maintenance and Storm Water Management in collaboration with
Planning and Development for the City of Stoughton, within local and state administered rules and
regulations.


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this position, but do
not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties may be assigned or required to
accomplish the main goals of this position and the City of Stoughton.


Technical


 Maintains knowledge of public works infrastructure construction: Streets, curbs, gutters,
sidewalks, greenways, catch basins, storm sewers, and storm water pumping facilities;
maintenance and repair materials, techniques and equipment applications; personnel supervision
policies and procedures; budget development and administration policies and procedures.


 Oversees that regular inspections of facilities and equipment are completed and appropriate
maintenance is completed and proper safety practices are implemented. Evaluates mechanical
and electrical operational status and safety.


 Oversight of sidewalk inspections-completed by staff.
 Responds to public works emergencies and natural disasters as necessary.
 Reviews and recommends approval of construction plans to Director of Planning and


Development.
 Works collectively with Utilities Department and Planning & Development Department.


Supervisory


 Supervise and monitor the performance of all employees of the Department.
 Provides management oversight to subordinate supervisors and employees to coordinate work


assignments.
 Plans, assigns, and directs work; ensuring day-to-day activities and services are fulfilled in


compliance with all federal and state laws, ordinances, resolutions, and other policy directives.
 Approves employee requests within the Department for time off requests and approves


timesheets and work order records.
 Working with Human Resources interviews, hires, promotes, disciplines, and trains Department


employees, except where such authority is vested by Wisconsin Statute, City of Stoughton
Policies, commissions, or the Mayor.


 Administers, implements and enforces safety policies and work duties.







 Develops and implements snow removal program.


Administrative


 Prepares and submits operational reports as needed to the governing body, various regulatory
agencies.


 In coordination with Supervisors within the Department, develops, submits and administers
operational and capital budgets for various programs of Public Works Department. Reviews
expenditures and revenues. Forecasts staffing levels, materials, supplies and equipment needs.
Approves expenditures according to the City purchasing policy.


 Performs public relations activities.
 Attends and participates in Common Council, Public Works, Tree Commission and other meetings


as needed. Prepares and presents reports and information to City officials. Conducts staff
meetings.


 Conducts and facilitates safety meetings with departmental personnel. Oversees the
implementation of safety policies.


 Working with Planning & Development Director coordinates construction and maintenance
schedules for public infrastructure projects.


 Active member on the Tree Commission, including oversight of volunteer activities and
recruitment, adherence to purchase policy, competitive bidding procedures, and contract/grant
compliance. Implementation or recommendation of Commission policy to Public Works.


 Helps develop and manage the construction and maintenance of city streets, storm sewers,
bridges, culverts and other areas.


 Works with the Director of Planning and Development and the Finance Director to establish the
Storm Water Utility Budget.


 Traffic management policies implemented with recommendations from the Chief of Police and
Streets Superintendant.


 Ensures the erection of signs and maintenance of street and pavement markings, following City
Council approval.


Planning and Facility Development


 Working with Director of Planning and Development and Utilities Director develops five-year
capital improvement plan for the Department and coordinates projects with other
departments. Develops, coordinates and implements all Department capital infrastructure
projects.


 Oversees contracted services. Works with consultants and contractors to manage project design,
construction and billing for department projects.


 Assists with the establishment of current and long-range objectives, plans and policies, and
analyzes for processing Department issues.


 Anticipates and implements solutions to issues within the department.
 Plans public works projects. Reviews condition of streets, curb and gutter, bridges and storm


water infrastructure and parks to determine need for repair and maintenance. Identifies and
recommends priority for various public works projects. Oversees the quality ratings for the
inventory of streets, sidewalks, parks, storm water systems and department facilities.


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for operations, but may
be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed duties do not compose an exclusive or all-
encompassing list of additional duties. Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main
goals of this position.


 Prepares or causes to be prepared any required state and federal reports for department
activities.


 Performs research, collects data, and prepares reports for use by the committees, commissions
and the Common Council of the City regarding various topics as needed.


 Prepares meeting agenda items and supplemental materials for packets.
 Serves on such boards and committees as directed by the Mayor and/or Common Council.
 Drafts policies, resolutions and ordinances regarding public works functions.







 Oversight of management of Urban Forestry Program.
 Locates graves for burial and monitors cemetery maintenance.
 Oversees department’s role for community events such as Syttende Mai, etc.
 Assists Clerk’s office with elections. Provides assistance with set up and tear down of election


equipment.


QUALIFICATIONS:
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and:


Education/Training/Certifications


 High school diploma or equivalent. Bachelor’s degree or Associates degree in public
administration, civil engineering, construction management, or related field preferred.


 Five years progressive administrative management experience and Progressive management of a
municipal department preferred.


 Any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills and
abilities.


 A minimum of five year road construction, maintenance, heavy equipment operation and related
experience, preferred.


 Valid Driver’s License. CDL class and endorsements but not required.


Skills


Language Skills


 Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with Public Works personnel, government
officials, attorneys, regulatory agency personnel, industry representatives, engineers, architects,
contractors, developers, civic organizations, city employees, news media representatives,
students and the general public.


 Ability to modify existing policies, strategies and/or methods to meet unusual conditions within
the context of existing management principles. Ability to analyze and categorize data and
information, to determine consequences and identify and select alternatives. Ability to decide the
time, place and sequence of operations within an organizational framework, as well as the ability
to oversee their execution.


 Ability to manage and direct a group of workers, including the ability to provide counseling and
mediation. Ability to persuade, convince and train supervisors enabling them to mentor
staff. Ability to advise and interpret regarding the application of policies, procedures and
standards to specific situations. Ability to provide formal instruction in a classroom or other
structured setting.


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory and descriptive data and information such as land ownership
records, maps, invoices, purchase orders, budgets, contracts, requests for proposals, project
specifications, engineering manuals, time cards, grant applications, press releases, annual report,
construction documents, policies, guidelines, billing statements, spreadsheets, job applications,
union contracts, accident reports, license/permit applications, meeting agendas and minutes,
ordinances, purchase orders, legal notices, resolutions, personnel manuals, state statutes, and
state administrative code and non-routine correspondence.


Mathematical Skills


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values and spatial
relationships.


 Ability to read, understand and calculate engineering plans and data.
 Ability to apply algebraic and trigonometric formulas. Ability to interpret formulation and equation


data.
 Ability to read, calculate, and interpret basic financial statements


Reasoning Ability







 Ability to define problems, collect and categorize data, establish facts and draw valid conclusions
to determine consequences and identify and select alternatives.


 Ability to analyze operations within an organizational framework, and to oversee their
execution. Ability to analyze and categorize data and information quickly and accurately using
established criteria, to determine consequences and identify and select alternatives.


 Ability to interpret, utilize and deal with an extensive variety of technical instructions or advisory
data and information in mathematical or diagram form, such as department operational reports,
budgets, lab records, work orders, purchase orders, annual audit reports, plans, specifications,
contracts, Wisconsin Administrative Code, City Code, technical operating manuals, safety
manuals, State statutes, procedures, guidelines and non-routine correspondence, with several
abstract and concrete variables.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the
direction, control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs; and in critical and/or
unexpected situations involving moderate risk to the organization.


 Ability to evaluate operations data.
 Ability to apply functional reasoning in synthesizing information and functions, and ability to


influence others in activities such as leading, controlling, managing, supervising and teaching.


Competencies


 Technical Skills- Assesses own strengths and weaknesses; Pursues training and development
opportunities; Strives to continuously build knowledge and skills; Shares expertise with others.


 Problem Solving- Identifies and resolves problems in a timely manner; Develops alternative
solutions; Works well in group problem solving situations; Uses reason even when dealing with
emotional topics.


 Project Management- Coordinates projects; Communicates changes and progress; Completes
projects on time and budget.


 Customer Service - Manages difficult or emotional customer situations; Responds promptly to
customer needs; Solicits customer feedback to improve service; Responds to requests for service
and assistance; Meets commitments.


 Interpersonal Skills - Focuses on solving conflict, not blaming; Maintains confidentiality; Listens to
others without interrupting; Keeps emotions under control; Remains open to others' ideas and
tries new things.


 Oral Communication - Listens and gets clarification; Responds well to questions; Participates in
meetings.


 Written Communication- Writes clearly and informatively; Able to read and interpret written
information.


 Cost Consciousness- Works within approved budget; Conserves organizational resources.
 Managing People - Makes self-available to staff; Provides regular performance feedback; Develops


subordinates' skills and encourages growth; Fosters quality focus in others.
 Teamwork- Balances team and individual responsibilities; Exhibits objectivity and openness to


others' views; Gives and welcomes feedback; Contributes to building a positive team spirit; Puts
success of team above own interests; Able to build morale and group commitments to goals and
objectives; Supports everyone's efforts to succeed.


 Diversity- Shows respect and sensitivity for cultural differences; Promotes a harassment-free
environment.


 Ethics - Treats people with respect; Keeps commitments; Inspires the trust of others; Works with
integrity and ethically; Upholds organizational values.


 Organizational Support- Follows policies and procedures; Supports organization's goals and
values.


 Judgment - Includes appropriate people in decision-making process.
 Motivation- Demonstrates persistence and overcomes obstacles; Measures self against standard


of excellence.
 Planning/Organizing- Uses time efficiently; Sets goals and objectives.
 Professionalism- Approaches others in a tactful manner; Reacts well under pressure; Treats others


with respect and consideration regardless of their status or position; Accepts responsibility for
own actions; Follows through on commitments.


 Quality - Demonstrates accuracy and thoroughness; Looks for ways to improve and promote







quality; Applies feedback to improve performance; Monitors own work to ensure quality.
 Quantity- Meets productivity standards; Completes work in timely manner; Strives to increase


productivity.
 Safety and Security - Observes safety and security procedures; Determines appropriate action


beyond guidelines; Reports potentially unsafe conditions; Uses equipment and materials properly.
 Adaptability- Adapts to changes in the work environment; Manages competing demands; Changes


approach or method to best fit the situation; Able to deal with frequent change, delays, or
unexpected events.


 Attendance/Punctuality- Is consistently at work and on time; Ensures work responsibilities are
covered when absent; Arrives at meetings and appointments on time.


 Dependability- Follows instructions, responds to management direction; Takes responsibility for
own actions; Keeps commitments; Commits to long hours of work when necessary to reach goals;
Completes tasks on time or notifies appropriate person with an alternate plan.


 Initiative- Volunteers readily; Undertakes self-development activities; Asks for and offers help
when needed.


 Leadership - Exhibits confidence in self and in others; Inspires and motivates others to perform
well; Effectively influences actions and opinions of others.


Physical Abilities


 Ability to exert moderately physically demanding work, typically involving some combination of
frequent standing, walking, using stairs, sitting, climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, pushing, and pulling. Ability to occasionally lift and carry up to 50
pounds. Ability to sustain prolonged visual concentration.


 Ability to operate, maneuver, and/or steer equipment and machinery requiring simple but
continuous adjustments, such as motor vehicle, drafting instruments, surveying instruments,
computer, telephone, two-way radio, fax machine, calculator/adding machine and photocopier.


 Ability to understand the operations and maintenance of a Supervisory Control And Data
Acquisition (SCADA) system and Geographic Information System (GIS).


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing movements requiring skill and
training.


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of
colors, shapes, sounds, odors and textures associated with job-related objects, materials and
tasks.


TYPICAL WORK ENVIRONMENT:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job.


Ability to work under conditions which require exposure to environmental factors such as temperature
variations and extremes (occasionally ranging from cold below minus 20 degrees F or heat above 90
degrees F), noise levels (intermittently between 50-85 decibels), odors, toxic grease and oils, dust,
fumes, moving machinery, moving vehicles, elevated heights (on structures, ladders and scaffolds up to
25 feet), vibrations, electrical equipment.


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER:
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with applicable state and federal
law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and
encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City.





		13-Resolution Public Works-Streets.pdf

		13-streetdept-superintendent99 - revised January 2016.pdf

		13-Director of Public Works Position Description Final.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve using $40,000 from the Impact Fees
account to help create a trail from Amundson Park to Stoughton Hospital.


Committee Action: Parks and Recreation Committee recommends approval 4-0
Finance Committee recommends approval 3-0


Fiscal Impact: $40,000 for trail construction


File Number: R-20-2016 Date Introduced: February 23, 2016


WHEREAS, the Yahara River Trail is a wonderful asset to Stoughton, and


WHEREAS, by connecting the trail from Amundson Park to Stoughton Hospital along the river, we
provide an option that bypasses 11 street blocks and a more scenic route, and


WHEREAS, we have an additional $30,000 grant from a local foundation and support from Stoughton
Hospital and Skaalen Retirement Services, Inc., and


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to approve using $40,000 from the Impact Fees account, to help create a
trail from Amundson Park to Stoughton Hospital.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
February 9, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building


Present:
Chairperson Christianson, Alderperson Jenson, Alderperson O’Connor and Mayor
Olson


Others Present:
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan, Deputy Treasurer Julie Roberts, Attorney Matt Dregne,
Parks and Recreation Director Tom Lynch, Planning Director Rodney Scheel,
Alderperson Tom Selsor and Bill Livick


Absent and Excused:
Tim Swadley


Call to order:
Finance Chair Christianson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City Officials to approve using
$40,000 from the Impact fees account to help create a trail from Amundson Park
to Stoughton Hospital:
Lynch spoke regarding the trail. He has received a $30,000 to help fund this. He would
like this to be contingent on the Hospital committing to extend their trail. Motion by
O’Connor to recommend Council approve the Resolution authorizing and directing the
proper City Officials to approve using $40,000 from the Impact fees account to help
create a trail from Amundson Park to Stoughton Hospital contingent upon the Hospital
committing to extend their portion, second by Jenson. Motion carried unanimously 3-0.







Amundson Park Trail Extension


The City of Stoughton has been developing and maintaining the Yahara River Trail since the late


1980s. This trail, will eventually loop around the Yahara River from central Stoughton to north


of Viking Park and provide the connection to Madison once the segments to McFarland and


Kegonsa State Park are completed.


Some of this trail was placed on City streets despite attempts to gain access for connections


through two large property owners. With the help of Chris Schmitz of Stoughton Hospital, Kris


Krentz of Skaalen and Darren Marsh of Dane County Parks, we now have those permissions


even though the specific agreements still need to be finalized.


This new extension will connect to the trail segment in Amundson Park, run along the river to


the west, crossing the Skaalen property and entering the Stoughton Hospital property. At this


point it will connect with a trail created and funded by the Hospital, leading to Ridge St.


This route will take the trail off city streets for 11 blocks including two on Main Street (Hy. 51)


as well as provide more views of the river and natural areas.


Finance


We have estimates of approximately $67,000 for a paved section between Amundson Park and


the beginning of the trail on Stoughton Hospital property. We are seeking Park Development


Funds of $40,000 to go with a $30,000 gift from a Stoughton foundation.


Support


As stated above, this project was part of the initial plans to create a trail system in Stoughton


that could lead to neighboring communities. The River and Trails Task Force, the Parks and


Recreation Committee and the Stoughton City Council support this plan as well as the


authorities with Stoughton Hospital and Skaalen Retirement Home.


Attached Map


The blue line shows where we want to go in this section


The red line shows the portion created by Stoughton Hospital


The black line shows where we want to go in the future


The shows where we currently have on-street trail sections







Length: 1,393.98 ft


Proposed Trail Section


Length: 785.17 ft
Proposed Hospital Trail SectionLength: 1,362.01 ft


Future Trail Section


Length: 5,418.77 ft


Current on Street Trail Section


Planning, Geophysical, Water Resources, Parcels







PROJECT COSTS


Item Description Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost


Survey 1 $3000 $ 3,000


Design 1 $5000 $ 5,000


Easements 2 $1000 $ 2,000


Trail prep work (1440 Ft X 12 Ft) 1240 Lf $25/Lf $31,000


Trail paving 1440 Lf $17.80 Lf $25,632


Total Project Costs $66,632


PROJECT FUNDING


Sources of Match (Other than PARC Grant Request) Status
(i.e. pending or secured)


Amount


Bryant Foundation Grant Secured $30,000


City of Stoughton Park Development Fund Secured $36,632


Total Project Funding $66,632


Amundson Park to Stoughton Hospital


Budget Form







Impact Fees for Land and Improvements
2015


223-00000-34740 Reserved: Land End of 2015 balance: $173,201.15


223-00000-34741 Reserved: Improvements End of 2015 balance: $87,391.57


223-00000-34742 Reserved: Donations End of 2015 balance: $0.00


223-00000-39000 Unreserved Fund Balance End of 2015 balance: $25,641.69







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday January 27, 2016
4:30 PM
Ed Overland Room


Present: Alderpersons: Sonny Swangstu, Regina Hirsch, Paul Lawrence, Donna Olson and Parks
and Recreation Director Tom Lynch
Guests: Jim Bricker, Dennis Steinkraus, John Halverson


1. Call to Order
By Swangstu at 4:31 PM


2. Approval of September 23, 2015 Minutes
Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Hirsch to approve the minutes from September 23, 2015.
Motion passed 4-0.


3. Communications
John Halverson updated the committee on his projects. 1) Working on a Park and Building
Maintenance plan: 2) Working with Cummins on extended trails near Virgin Lake; 3) Weed
spraying starts in May on selected parks based on weed assessments conducted last fall.


The Division St. Park riverbank stabilization project is moving forward with plans being developed
by our consultant.


Old Business


4. Amundson Trail Funding Request
Lynch asked the committee to support funding a portion of the trail segment from Amundson Park
to Stoughton Hospital.


This route will take the trail off city streets for 11 blocks including two on Main Street (Hy. 51) as
well as provide more views of the river and natural areas.


We have estimates of approximately $67,000 for a paved section between Amundson Park and
the beginning of the trail on Stoughton Hospital property. We are seeking Impact Fees of $40,000
to go with a $30,000 gift from a Stoughton foundation.


The account for Impact Fees of Park Improvements contains $87,391.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Hirsch to approve using $40,000 from the Impact Fees
account, to help create a trail from Amundson Park to Stoughton Hospital. Motion passed 4-0.


New Business


5. Special Event Packet Update
The packet for guiding events in parks needed several updates to make it compatible with
Racetrack and other parks as well as Mandt. Fees were increased, residency was defined and
language was added and deleted when it improved the document.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Hirsh to recommend to Council approval of the Special Events
in Parks packet. Motion passed 4-0.


6. Kettle Park West Parkland Phase 2
The committee talked about the parkland proposal for Phase 2 of the Kettle Park West
development. Questions were raised about the amount of land dedicated, trail options, phase 3
parkland and routes used for water runoff. Opinions were considered as the subject will further be
vetted in future discussions.







7. Future Agenda Items
Project Updates
Trail Extensions


8. Adjournment
Motion made by Lawrence, seconded by Hirsch to adjourn at 5:50. Motion passed 4-0.





		Resolution for Amundson Park Trail Funding.pdf

		Trail minutes.pdf

		trail back up.pdf

		4. Amundson Park Trail Extension.pdf

		Amundson to Stoughton Hospital Trail section PDF.pdf

		Amundson Park to Stoughton Hospital Budget Form.pdf

		4c. Impact Fees for Land and Improvements.pdf

		PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1-27-16 Highlighted.pdf








City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton Community Farmers


Market (SCFM) street closings on Forrest St between Main St and the North Alley on Saturday’s
{May 21– October 29, 2016 8:30 am to 12:00 pm}


Committee Action: Public Works Committee – Motion carried 4-0 (Mayor voted yes


Fiscal Impact: 0


File Number: Date Introduced 2-23-16


WHEREAS, a request was made from Stoughton Community Farmers Market wanting to partner with
the City of Stoughton to continue a downtown Farmers Market on Saturday mornings, starting on the
last Saturday in May until the last Saturday of October on a public street


WHEREAS, your Public Works Committee met on February 16, 2016 to discuss and review the street
closing permit for Forrest Street {between Main St and North Alley}to host a Farmers Market every
Saturday of the month from {8:00 am – 12:00 pm} {Last Saturday of May to last Saturday of October},


WHEREAS, your Public Works Committee requested submittal of insurance documentation for city
staff to review for compliance and approval,


WHEREAS, your Public Works Committee recommends to approve the street closing on Forrest St,
contingent upon receiving submitted insurance document along with the rules and regulations,


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to approve the street closing on Forrest St {Main St to North Alley} for a
Farmers Market on Saturday’s {last Saturday of May to last Saturday of October}


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







S:\rjs\Resolutions\Public Works Resolution.docx







Public Works Committee
Tuesday, February 16, 2016 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room – 381 E Main St.


Members Present: Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Sid Boersma, Tom Selsor and Mayor Olson


Absent: Paul Lawrence


Staff: Street Superintendent Karl Manthe, Planning Director Rodney Scheel and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Kevan Bard, Stephen Lawrence – Acting Market Manager & Lisa Reeves – Board Vice
President from SCFM and Charles Vervoot


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm


1) Communications: Manthe stated that they had a few snow events that kept crews busy.
Mayor Olson thanked the street department crew and Martin Briggs for helping with the
elections.


2) Activity Reports: Manthe reported:


 Christmas Tree collection was conducted during the month and crews chipped up 870
Christmas Trees.


 As mentioned above, crews had a couple snow events to take care of with plowing, salting
streets, and cleaning sidewalks.


 Crews have performed safety pruning, trimmed branches hanging over streets/sidewalks
and removed parkrow trees throughout the city. Private tree contractor has been assisting
city also with removing parkrow trees scheduled for removal throughout the city.


 Crews were out patching streets with cold patch throughout the city. The new “hotbox” unit
for heating the asphalt keeps the asphalt more workable during cold days.


 Street crews removed Christmas decorations and holiday banners on downtown street light
poles. Flags and new Arts & Culture banners will be put up later in the spring.


 Administrative Assistant is busy keeping inventories current for cemetery, trees and signs,
processing invoices, tracking yardwaste permits, sales, and usage, computerizing
employee timesheets, and addressing customer inquiries.


 Fleet Maintenance Manager continues to maintain city wide fleet to make sure it is available
for daily tasks. Fleet Manager repairs winter snow & ice removal equipment as required.


 Crews cleaned, washed and waxed trucks and equipment during the month.
 The Parks Department has been working on long range plan for CIP items to address park


improvements and maintenance. Parks crews has also cleaned city owned sidewalks
during snow events.


 Other routine tasks completed during the month include; dumping trash barrels downtown
and cemeteries, cleaning fleet and garage, check traffic signals, monitor water levels at
Fourth Street Dam, garage safety inspections (fire extinguishers, eye wash stations, exit
lights, fall protection).


Old Business:


3) Recommendation & Approval of Adaptive Management: Scheel informed the committee
that the city attorney had checked the document. Scheel also stated that this agreement is the
most cost effective method to meet the cities phosphorus goals and that the $11,000 cost will
start with the 2017 budget which will be paid from the stormwater utilities account. Mayor
Olson stated that Stoughton Utilities passed the plan at their monthly meeting.







Motion by Boersma, seconded by Selsor to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed as presented. Motion
carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


4) Veterans Park Tennis Court Discussion: Manthe recommended to the committee to 1)
paint both tennis and pickleball lines on the court, 2) monitor the activity for each game this
year and 3) suggested getting feedback from residents using the courts what, if any, issues
they had.


A neighboring property to the park has several issues concerning tennis balls damaging her
property, balls going into the street and if pickleball is allowed (would prefer that there be no
pickleball) there would be a noise factor and could there be something done to buffer the
sound. Mr. Lawrence stated that he couldn’t speak for his wife, but, his concern was a safety
issues with the balls going into the street as people tend to drive faster than the 25 mph speed
limit and that the road has a slight hill where the court is located.


Selsor feels that pickleball is becoming a very popular sport which the city should
accommodate and this is a public park. Other suggestions were: to put up a practice board,
plant shrubbery or install a net on the street side of the court. A member of the committee felt
that since the park is not well lighted, that shrubbery could make it unsafe as people would not
be able to see.


Another issue brought to the committee’s attention was that there were overhead wires that
should e addressed for safety purposes.


Action Item: Put on March agenda.


Agenda item # 7 was moved to accommodate citizens attending the meeting.


7) Request to Close Forrest Street for Farmers Market on Saturdays – Stoughton
Community Farmers Market: Kevin Baird from the Stoughton Community Farmers Market
(SCFM) discussed the intent of the market which is held on Saturdays – 8:00 am to Noon
starting May 21, 2016 through October 29, 2016. The location remains on Forrest Street (Main
to Bank Alley. The alleyway would remain open for bank customers. Baird also stated that the
insurance was good until June and will be renewed.


Motion by Boersma, seconded by Selsor to recommend to the Common Council to
allow the closure on Forrest St (Main to alley) to accommodate the Stoughton
Community Farmers Market on Saturdays May 21 – October 29, 2016. Motion carried 4-
0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


5) Downtown Snow Removal Discussion: Manthe discussed the joint Public Works /Public
Safety meeting that was held in January which numerous downtown business owners
attended and voiced their concerns. Manthe summarized three major areas of concern – 1)
turnaround time for when the street department cleans the downtown area, 2) snow is not
moved adequately around structures and 3) ramps that are shoveled and then filled in when
plows continually clean the streets


Manthe has already discussed with the operators to plow differently to help the business
owners. The business owners did request that the ordinance for snow removal be reduced
from the current 48 hours to 24 hours in the downtown area. Changing the snow ordinance
between downtown and residential may be problematic.


The committee fells there is “tweaking” that needs to be done on both sides and suggested
that there be a letter sent at a designated time each year as a reminder on the snow
procedures. Manthe also suggested that the Public Works & Public Safety meet again and
work with the business owners.







New Business:


6) Approve January 19, 2016 Meeting Minutes: Motion by Boersma seconded by Selsor to
approve minutes. Motion carried 3-0.


8) Requests to Change Gjertson Street Construction Project: This Street was scheduled for
pulverization in 2016 which would only address the pavement issues.


Manthe and Scheel have been working with the engineers and business owner on other
issues pertaining to the street including sidewalks, stormwater and safety issues. The
recommendation is to change this project to a full street construction project which is more
costly and not budgeted for. Manthe suggested trying to get funds from the Local Road
Improvement Program to help.


Motion by Boersma, seconded by Selsor to delay the project until more information is
received and is feasible.


9) 2016 Street Construction Projects – Review Design Plans: The bids for these projects
have been advertised and the bid opening will be on March 3 @ 11:00 am. Two bid packages
were sent out


1) Street reconstruction projects to include:


Van Buren St (Main St to Wilson), Wilson St (Van Buren St to Page St) and Clyde St (Madison
St to Van Buren St)


2) Street pulverization projects to include:


Kings Lynn Rd (Jackson St to Felland St), Chapin Ln (Roby Rd to Devonshire, Industrial Circle
(Ortega Dr to Commerce), King St (W South St to Kvamme0 and Brewer Court.


Manthe and Scheel displayed the designs of each street and discussed the different details of
each street.


10) Review Street Tree Ordinance 10-2: Scheel felt the ordinance needed more clarification to
insure that the intent of the ordinance is followed. There are also several discrepancies in
language and should the downtown be included as there are already different requirements for
being in a downtown setting. Scheel stated several situations as examples as how they would
be handled. The committee would like this item to be placed on the agenda for March to
discuss options and language.


11) Future Agenda Items: Veterans Park Tennis Court, Street Tree Installation Ordinance 10-2


Moved by Selsor, seconded by Boersma to adjourn the meeting at 7:55 pm. Motion
carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant – 2/17/2016









		2016 Resolution on Farmers Market.pdf

		PW Min February 16, 2016.pdf

		SCFM Street Closing Request Signature Page.pdf






 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, January 26, 2016 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg 


Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim 


Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl 


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


Director Sullivan called the roll.  10 alders are present with Swadley and Swangstu absent and excused. 


 


1. Communications:   


 


 Director Sullivan reminded citizens that at the February 16 Primary election the Voter ID law 


will be effective, 


 


 Presentation by Jerry Deschane, Executive Director regarding the League of Wisconsin 


Municipalities: Executive Director Deschane informed Council of the role of the league 


of Wisconsin municipalities.  The league is charged with watching, lobbying and 


informing re: legislation that affects municipalities.  Also the league is a resource for 


municipal Alders, Attorneys and staff.  Workshops for elected officials. 


 


 Staff report:  KPW Update – Planning Director Scheel showed the Council how to get to the 


website document regarding Kettle Park West.  He also updated the Council regarding the draft 


timeline for KPW Phase 2. Other items that are on the radar and will be coming to council 


include 1.) Access points to the development including Jackson Street, connection to Hwy 51 


via Roby Road and connection to Hwy 138;  2.)  CSM area of the South West corner of the 


development regarding the pond area.  3.) Park area inside the development.  4.) Phase 3 area is 


not in the City Urban Service Area and outside of the City Comprehensive Plan. 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  The following minutes were entered into the record: 


 


 Minutes: Finance-Jan 12, 2016, RDA-Nov 3, 2015, Commission on Aging-Dec 2015, 


Landmarks- Dec 10, 2015. 
 


 


3. Public Comment Period:      (*Please note:  Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda): NONE 


 


 


 


 


  


 







 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. Council Minutes: January 26, 2016 


  


Motion made by Boersma second by Christianson to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carries 


unanimously by acclamation. 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


 


5. O-2-2016-An ordinance amending sections 78-206(8)(c), 78-105(2)(g), 78-105(2)(h) and 


Appendix C of the City of Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance to conditionally allow 


accessory structures greater than 900 square feet in the MR-10 and MR-24 zoning 


districts and clarify that that MR-24 district conditionally allows 24 units per acre not per 


building and the same for the MR-10 district. 


(Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0)    SECOND READING 


 


Alderperson Christianson presented Ordinance O-2-2016 for a second reading.   This Ordinance 


amends the municipal zoning to allow conditional uses to include accessory buildings greater 


than 900 sq ft., and to clarify that 24 units are allowed per acre but does not limit the size of the 


building to only 24 units. 


 


Motion made by Christianson and second by Truehl to approve O-2-2016.  Motion carries  


8-2, with Hirsch and Majewski voting noe. 


 


 


6. O-3-2016- To amend Section 10-2 Construction Standards- Chapter 10-2(d) Street Tree 


Installation related to the planting of park row trees by developers. 


(Public Works Committee recommends approval 4-0)  SECOND READING 


 


Alderperson Majewski presented Ordinance O-3-2016 for a second reading.  This ordinance 


amendment requires developers at the time of being issued a building permit, to pay the City of 


Stoughton the cost of $350 per tree for the installation of two (2) city terrace trees that will be 


planted by an approved landscape professional contracted by the City of Stoughton 


There was a motion by Majewski and second by Engelberger to approve O-3-2016.  Motion 


carries 10-0 by acclamation. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


 


7 O-4-2016- An ordinance amending sections 78-206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 of the City 


of Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance clarifying sanitary sewer and water lateral 


installation requirements for Duplexes and Twin-Homes. 


(Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0)  FIRST READING 


 


Alderperson Christianson presented Ordinance O-4-2016 for a first reading.  This ordinance 


amendment is to require duplexes and twin homes to have separate water and sewer lateral for 


each unit for water and sewer except, a duplex may be constructed on any existing vacant TR-6 


parcel with a water lateral and a sewer lateral already stubbed to the property. At the time of 


construction of the duplex, the water lateral shall be split to have separate water shut off valves 


within the terrace for each individual unit. The sewer lateral shall also be split within the terrace 


to provide a separate sewer line from the terrace to each individual unit. 


 


This ordinance will come back to the Council at its next meeting for a second reading and 


vote. 


 


 


 


8. ADJOURNMENT 


 


There was a motion by Lawrence, second by Jensen to adjourn at 7:55 p.m.  Motion carries 


unanimously by acclamation 10-0. 


 


 


 


 


 
Respectfully submitted by  


 


Laurie Sullivan, Finance Director 


 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\2-23-2016\O-  -16   Zoning Amendment Duplex - Twin Homes- 3rd draft.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


An ordinance amending sections 78-206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 of the City of Stoughton Municipal 


Zoning Ordinance  


Committee Action:    Planning Commission recommends Council approval 5 - 0 with the Mayor voting. 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O - 04 - 2016 Date 


Introduced:  


Feb.9, 2016 First 


Feb. 23, 2016 Second 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Sec.  78-206(8)(c)2   Duplex.  


Description: These dwelling unit types consist of a single-family dwelling which is attached on 


one side to another single-family residence where the entire building is under single ownership. 


A minimum building code required fire rated wall assembly division, separating living areas 


from the lowest level to flush against the underside of the roof is required between each dwelling 


unit. Upon the effective date of this ordinance amendment (March 3, 2016), all newly 


constructed duplexes are required to install a sanitary sewer lateral and public water lateral for 


each individual dwelling unit except, a duplex may be constructed on any existing vacant TR-6 


parcel with a water lateral and a sewer lateral already stubbed to the property.   At the time of 


construction of the duplex, the water lateral shall be split to have separate water shut off valves 


within the terrace for each individual unit.  The sewer lateral shall also be split within the terrace 


to provide a separate sewer line from the terrace to each individual unit.  The two residences are 


located on the same lot. These dwelling unit types may not be split into additional residences. 


Refer to the illustration below and to Article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


 


2. Sec.  78-206(8)(c)3   Twin-house.  


Description: These dwelling unit types consist of a single-family dwelling which is attached on 


one side to another single-family residence. A minimum building code required fire rated wall 


assembly division, separating living areas from the lowest level to flush against the underside of 


the roof is required between each dwelling unit. Upon the effective date of this ordinance 


amendment, all newly constructed twin homes are required to install have a sanitary sewer lateral 


to the sanitary main and a public water lateral from the water main, for each individual dwelling 


unit. Separate water and sewer laterals, to the respective mains, are not required when converting 


an existing duplex to a twin home or when building a new twin home. The two residences are 


located on separate lots. The twin house is distinguished from the duplex house merely by having 


each unit located on an individual lot or within a group or large development. These dwelling 


unit types may not be split into additional residences. A mutual maintenance agreement is 


recommended to be drafted and recorded between property owners to address for example; repair 


and/or replacement of the exterior components of the structure. Refer to the illustration on the 


following page and to Article I for setback requirements labeled in capital letters:  


 


 


 


 







 


3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Donna Olson, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        City Clerk, Lana Kropf 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


  


 


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O-  -16   Zoning Amendment Duplex - Twin Homes- 3rd draft.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2016\2-8-16\Planning Info\Hopfensperger Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 1, 2016


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the February 8, 2016 Planning Commission and (February 9, 2016
and February 23, 2016) Common Council Meetings


1. Ashley and Tim Hopfensperger request the Planning Commission and Common Council
consider proposed zoning amendments to section 78-206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 of the
City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance.
This request is proposed to require newly constructed duplexes to be served from a separate
water lateral and separate sewer lateral from the main for each side, except where there is an
existing duplex lot on an improved street where one water and one sewer lateral is already
stubbed into the lot. This exception will require the laterals be split within the terrace to each
side of the duplex. The water will have individual shutoffs in the terrace. Additionally,
converting a duplex to a twin home (zero lot line) will require separate water and sewer laterals
be installed from the main. We have a statement from Mark Williams a professional engineer
from the public service commission that indicates the twin home language should be changed
as proposed and the duplex language is a local issue since utilities can be more restrictive than
PSC regulations.



































PSC Home


Electric Natural Gas Telecom Water Consumers


Search


Water & Sewer


If a “side by side” duplex is converted to condominium units and the lot is subdivided, can the properties continue to


be served through a shared lateral?


The two sides of a duplex can be served by a shared lateral, however, if the property is subdivided and the units


converted to condominiums, service through a shared lateral is no longer allowed. The standards set forth in Wis.


Admin. Code § PSC 185.52(2)(b), Single Connections, and in Schedule X-1,Water Utility Operating Rules prohibit


this arrangement.


Wis. Admin. Code § PSC 185.52(2)(b) Single Connections states: "A customer's lateral shall be


directly connected to utility-owned facilities, and there shall be no other customer connection


downstream from the utility's shut-off valve."


Normally there must be just one utility billing customer per lateral and each individual lot must be served by a


separate lateral from the main to the dwelling. There is an exception for duplexes on a single lot, but this exception


does not apply if the lot is subdivided and the duplex is converted to condominiums.


Schedule X-1, Water Utility Operating Rules Establishment of Service, states: "No division


of the water service lateral to any lot or parcel of land shall be made for the extension and independent


metering of the supply to an adjoining lot or parcel of land. Except for duplexes, no division of a water


service lateral shall be made at the curb for separate supplies for two or more separate premises having


frontage on any street or public service strip, whether owned by the same or different parties."


In the example below, the “side by side” duplex has been subdivided into two individual lots and living units. The


above rule prohibits service to the second living unit (Condo 2 in drawing) through the shared lateral. Each unit must


be served by an independent lateral from the main to the point of use.


When a “side by side” duplex with one lateral is converted to a condominium and the property is subdivided , each


property must be independently served by an individual lateral from the main to the point of use. At the time of


subdivision the utility must require the developer or owner to install a second water lateral from the main to the


living unit of Condo 2 in the drawing.


Where the utility has not required a separate lateral at the time of subdivision, it should seek to reconcile the problem


at the earliest opportunity. Commission staff recommends that, if the situation provides adequate service and the


parties are agreeable, the necessary improvements be deferred until the property without its own lateral (Condo 2) is


sold or when a leaky lateral needs replacement. At that time, the owner of Condo 2 is required to install a new lateral.


This obligation to improve the service lateral should be recorded on the deed so any party interested in purchasing


the property is aware of cost.


Where it is apparent that the utility recommended or allowed the improper connection, the utility is required to pay


for the street portion of the new lateral and the property owner (Condo 2) must pay for the lateral from the shut off


About Us Library In the News File With Us


Consumer Issues


Water Conservation


Construction & Environmental


Utility Education


Resources, Reports & Tariffs


Rate Setting


Contacts


Page 1 of 2Public Service Commission of Wisconsin - Water Division


12/29/2015https://psc.wi.gov/utilityInfo/water/utilityTraining/infrastructure/condoLateral.htm







into the dwelling. If there is no record of how the noncompliant situation developed, PSC staff argues that the utility


either was or should have been aware of it at one point and chose to allow it. Therefore the utility is responsible for


its portion of the lateral in this case.


Occasionally, waiting for the sale of the property is not workable, such as when the property owners are involved in


dispute over the situation. In this case the PSC will direct the utility to give written notice to the owner of the


property without its own lateral (Condo 2) requiring him or her to install the new lateral within a reasonable period


of time. The time allowed to correct the situation is up to the utility, but it often is one to two years.


In all the above scenarios, the property owner keeping the old lateral (Condo 1) normally is responsible for the cost to


excavate and abandon the portion of the non-complying lateral on his or her property.


The best way to avoid these problems is to enforce the one lateral per property rule at the time of initial construction


and at the time of subdivision. For a “side by side” duplex property it is wise to inform the owner or developer that


individual laterals will be required for each parcel if the lot is ever subdivided. If the utility delays requiring


compliance, the utility may be required to share the cost to bring the lateral(s) into compliance. Where


noncompliant situations already exist, it is good to explain the problem to the property owners and agree to resolve


the situation at the earliest opportunity. If the case is particularly complex or contentious, we encourage you to


contact Commission staff for guidance.


If you have any questions, you may contact Bruce Schmidt by email atMark.Williams or phone (608) 266-5726.


Page 2 of 2Public Service Commission of Wisconsin - Water Division


12/29/2015https://psc.wi.gov/utilityInfo/water/utilityTraining/infrastructure/condoLateral.htm







From: Williams, Mark B - PSC [mailto:Mark.Williams@wisconsin.gov]
Sent: Monday, November 30, 2015 11:21 AM
To: Michael Stacey; ajthebuilderman@yahoo.com
Cc: bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com
Subject: RE: Idea for Zoning change


Gentlemen,


I want to acknowledge speaking with Mr. Arnett last week and to follow up with both of you with the
PSC perspective on this issue. The following language is included in the Stoughton Water Utility tariff
(See page 1, Schedule X-1, Water Utility Operating Rules).


Based on this tariff language, we feel that the City of Stoughton is acting in compliance with our legal
requirements. From our perspective, this is a local issue and we see no reason to intervene.


Thank you.


Mark B. Williams, P.E.
Public Service Engineer – Senior
Division of Water, Telecommunications and Consumer Affairs
608-266-5726
Email: mark.williams@wisconsin.gov







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Ord. Amend Duplex-Twin Home 16.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, January 11,
2016 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public Safety Building,
Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a request by Ashley
and Tim Hopfensperger to amend the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. The proposed
ordinance amendments are to sections 78-206(1)(a) 2 and 78-206(1)(a) 3, of the City of Stoughton
Zoning Ordinance, Dane County, Wisconsin.


The amendment is proposed to allow all newly constructed duplexes be installed with two separate
water shut off valves off one lateral within the terrace for each individual unit while splitting the sewer
lateral within the terrace to provide a separate sewer to each individual unit. Additionally, converting a
duplex to a twin home would require separate water and sewer laterals. The proposed amendment may
be viewed at the Department of Planning & Development, City Hall, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton,
WI. 53589.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published December 24, 2015 and December 31, 2015 Hub







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2016\Planning Minutes 2-8-16.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, February 8, 2016 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice Chair; Michael
Maloney; Pat O’Connor and Scott Truehl.
Absent: Todd Krcma and Matt Hanna
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey; Parks & Recreation Director, Tom Lynch
Guests: Dennis Steinkraus; Kevin Yeska; Josh Stands; Ashley Hopfensperger; AJ Arnett; Nicole
Hines; Jordan Tilleson; Jean & Mike Nordlie; Tom Selsor


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of January 11, 2016.
Motion by Christianson to approve the minutes of January 11, 2016 as presented, 2nd by
Truehl. Motion carried 5 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson reported R-9-16 was approved and O-2-16 was a first reading at Council.


4. Status of Developments. Scheel gave an overview of the current developments as outlined
in the packet of materials. There were no questions.


5. Ashley and Tim Hopfensperger request to amend zoning ordinance sections 78-
206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 related to providing water and sewer services to a duplex
and twin home. Tabled from January 11, 2016
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment would allow existing improved duplex lots with
one water and one sewer lateral already stubbed into the property to have one water lateral
and one sewer lateral from the main while splitting the water with separate shutoff’s in the
terrace and splitting the sewer in the terrace. Splitting any duplex to create a twin home in
the future will require separate water and sewer laterals from each unit to the main.


Motion by Maloney to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 5 – 0.


6. Jean Nordlie requests extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) approval to create one
residential parcel south of 3415 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
Scheel explained the request. O’Connor questioned the lot size. Scheel stated we defer to
the County and Town to meet the County standards for lot size.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional land division request contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County
approval, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 5 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight

Ashley and Tim Hopfensperger request to amend zoning ordinance sections 78-
206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 related to providing water and sewer services to a duplex
and twin home. Tabled from January 11, 2016
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment would allow existing improved duplex lots with
one water and one sewer lateral already stubbed into the property to have one water lateral
and one sewer lateral from the main while splitting the water with separate shutoff’s in the
terrace and splitting the sewer in the terrace. Splitting any duplex to create a twin home in
the future will require separate water and sewer laterals from each unit to the main.
Motion by Maloney to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 5 – 0.









RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing Council approval of the resolution establishing policies for the use of Tax Incremental
Financing (TIF)


Committee Action: Finance recommends approval 4-0


File Number: R-12-2016 Date Introduced: February 23, 2016


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed the proposed amendments to the Tax Incremental
Financing (TIF) policy, and


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee approved the amendments of the Tax Incremental Financing (TIF)
policy, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Council approve the
resolution establishing policies for the use of Tax Incremental Financing (TIF).


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2016\02-23-16\TIF Policy with mark ups.docx
2/17/2016 8:40 AM


City of Stoughton Guidelines Policy
for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts


and the Approval of TIF Projects.


1. Purpose. This policy has The following guidelines have been prepared to assist the
City in determining whether to create a Tax Incremental Finance District, and in
determining whether to approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing for particular
projects. The authority to approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing is vested
solely in the City Council. The City reserves the right to reject any and all projects,
including projects that are eligible for the use of Tax Incremental Financing, for any
reason or no reason. The City Council reserves the right to waive, amend or adjust
this policy these guidelines, and to approve or disapprove any project as it deems
appropriate.


2. General Goals for the use of Tax Incremental Financing. The City may consider
whether a TIF District or a TIF project serves one or more of the following general
goals when deciding whether to create a TIF District, or whether to provide TIF
financing for a particular project:


A. Eliminate blighting influences, redevelop underutilized lands, and provide
suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development.


B. Achieve or accelerate development on sites that would not be developed
without the use of Tax Incremental Financing.


C. Increase employment opportunities in the City.
D. Increase the tax base for the City and other taxing jurisdictions.
E. Assists implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
F. Provide affordable housing opportunities.
G. Encourage unsubsidized private development in the City.


3. TIF District Creation.


A. TIF Districts will be created in accordance with the procedures and standards
in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as such statute may be amended. (See Appendix
A - Department of Revenue TIF Creation Checklist).


B. The City Council may, in individual cases, expand the process for creating a
TIF District in such manner as it deems appropriate.


4. TIF Project Approval. All TIF projects must be approved by the City Council,
following review and report by the Finance Committee. The Finance Director shall
provide a report to the Finance Committee and the City Council addressing the
following issues, which shall may be considered by the Finance Committee and City
Council before approving any TIF project:







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2016\02-23-16\TIF Policy with mark ups.docx
2/17/2016 8:40 AM


A. Is the project authorized by the Project Plan for the TIF District?
B. Does the project serve one or more of the City’s general goals for the use of


TIF?
C. Is Tax Incremental Financing feasible, in that the TIF District will support


the level of TIF investment?
D. Is the amount of Tax Increment Financing requested reasonably necessary to


make the project financially viable?
E. Should a development agreement be required, and what terms should be


included in the agreement?
F. Is more process (such as additional public hearings or a referendum)


appropriate?
G. Such other factors as either the Finance Committee or City Council deem


appropriate.


5. Permissive Referendum. Before the City may issue bonds or otherwise borrow
funds that will be payable over more than 10 years to fund a TIF project, City must
first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to borrow the funds. If a number of
electors of the city equal to at least 15% of the of the votes cast for governor at the
last general election in the city sign and file a petition conforming to the
requirements of Wis. Stat. § 8.40 with the city clerk requesting submission of the
resolution, the city may not issue bonds or borrow funds for financing the TIF
project without calling a special election to submit the question of bonding or
borrowing to the city electors for their approval.


6. Negotiations. City staff and the city attorney will negotiate development
agreements within the parameters established by the City Council, and subject to
final approval by the City Council.







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2016\02-23-16\TIF Policy clean.docx
2/17/2016 8:40 AM


City of Stoughton Policy
for the Creation of Tax Incremental Finance Districts


and the Approval of TIF Projects.


1. Purpose. This policy has been prepared to assist the City in determining whether to
create a Tax Incremental Finance District, and in determining whether to approve
the use of Tax Incremental Financing for particular projects. The authority to
approve the use of Tax Incremental Financing is vested solely in the City Council.
The City reserves the right to reject any and all projects, including projects that are
eligible for the use of Tax Incremental Financing, for any reason or no reason. The
City Council reserves the right to waive, amend or adjust this policy, and to approve
or disapprove any project as it deems appropriate.


2. General Goals for the use of Tax Incremental Financing. The City may consider
whether a TIF District or a TIF project serves one or more of the following general
goals when deciding whether to create a TIF District, or whether to provide TIF
financing for a particular project:


A. Eliminate blighting influences, redevelop underutilized lands, and provide
suitable sites for industrial, commercial or residential development.


B. Achieve or accelerate development on sites that would not be developed
without the use of Tax Incremental Financing.


C. Increase employment opportunities in the City.
D. Increase the tax base for the City and other taxing jurisdictions.
E. Assists implementation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
F. Provide affordable housing opportunities.
G. Encourage unsubsidized private development in the City.


3. TIF District Creation.


A. TIF Districts will be created in accordance with the procedures and standards
in Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as such statute may be amended. (See Appendix
A - Department of Revenue TIF Creation Checklist).


B. The City Council may, in individual cases, expand the process for creating a
TIF District in such manner as it deems appropriate.


4. TIF Project Approval. All TIF projects must be approved by the City Council,
following review and report by the Finance Committee. The Finance Director shall
provide a report to the Finance Committee and the City Council addressing the
following issues, which shall be considered by the Finance Committee and City
Council before approving any TIF project:


A. Is the project authorized by the Project Plan for the TIF District?







T:\PACKETS\FINANCE\2016\02-23-16\TIF Policy clean.docx
2/17/2016 8:40 AM


B. Does the project serve one or more of the City’s general goals for the use of
TIF?


C. Is Tax Incremental Financing feasible, in that the TIF District will support
the level of TIF investment?


D. Is the amount of Tax Increment Financing requested reasonably necessary to
make the project financially viable?


E. Should a development agreement be required, and what terms should be
included in the agreement?


F. Is more process (such as additional public hearings or a referendum)
appropriate?


G. Such other factors as either the Finance Committee or City Council deem
appropriate.


5. Permissive Referendum. Before the City may issue bonds or otherwise borrow
funds that will be payable over more than 10 years to fund a TIF project, City must
first adopt a resolution declaring its intent to borrow the funds. If a number of
electors of the city equal to at least 15% of the of the votes cast for governor at the
last general election in the city sign and file a petition conforming to the
requirements of Wis. Stat. § 8.40 with the city clerk requesting submission of the
resolution, the city may not issue bonds or borrow funds for financing the TIF
project without calling a special election to submit the question of bonding or
borrowing to the city electors for their approval.


6. Negotiations. City staff and the city attorney will negotiate development
agreements within the parameters established by the City Council, and subject to
final approval by the City Council.







  


RESOLUTION NO. R-18-2005 


ESTABLISHING POLICIES FOR THE USE OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING (TIF) 


 


Introduction 


 


During the year 2005, the CITY OF STOUGHTON embarked on a comprehensive planning 


process and established a Redevelopment District. The impetus for these activities is a strong 


desire to understand what the community can be and to put the tools in place to make it happen. 


The CITY will be assigning responsibility to a Committee or Commission to take the lead on 


redevelopment activities and the implementing of TIF districts. The policies that follow are 


intended to provide guidance to developers and the community regarding the types of projects 


the CITY would like to consider, the potential amount of assistance that can be expected for 


eligible projects and the performance expectations for projects which receive TIF assistance. 


 


Important Notice and Disclaimer 


The attached policies and guidelines have been prepared by the CITY for the purpose of guiding 


recommendations regarding Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) assistance to projects within CITY 


designated redevelopment areas. The authority to make decisions regarding the use of TIF funds 


is vested solely in the City Council of the CITY OF STOUGHTON. Projects requesting TIF 


assistance are cautioned that the attached information has been prepared primarily for internal 


use by the CITY and to inform applicants of the types of projects the CITY would consider 


recommending for TIF assistance. The CITY  reserves the right to reject any and all projects, 


even those which satisfy all of the attached criteria for the use of TIF for any reason whatsoever, 


without regard for the viability of the project. Furthermore, the CITY reserves the right to waive, 


amend or adjust these policies, and recommend any project the CITY deems to be in the best 


interests of the CITY OF STOUGHTON. 


 


Policy for the Use of Tax Increment Financing 


 


WHEREAS, Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) is an important tool and resource for 


improving the community by funding public improvements and Fostering development and 


redevelopment projects which the City finds and determines are desirable and in the public 


interest; and, 


 


WHEREAS, the CITY OF STOUGHTON finds it in the best interest of the public to 


establish certain policies and guidelines for the consideration of proposals that may be presented 


to the CITY by private developers requesting TIF assistance; and, 


 


WHEREAS, by adopting this policy the CITY has determined that the use of TIF should 


be reserved for projects which further an important and clearly definable public interest of the 


City; and, 


 


WHEREAS, the CITY desires to use TIF for those projects which demonstrate the 


highest public benefit by eliminating blight, financing desirable public improvements, 


strengthening the employment and economic base, increasing property values, creating economic 


stability, and implementing the Comprehensive Plan, Redevelopment Plans and economic 







  


development strategy of the City; and, 


 


WHEREAS, by adopting this policy the CITY intends to set forth a flexible framework 


for evaluating private applications for TIF assistance; and, 


 


WHEREAS, all applications for TIF assistance submitted to the CITY will be evaluated 


on their own merits, and an evaluation of the proposals will be performed by City Staff and 


forwarded to Finance Committee with recommendations; and, 


 


WHEREAS, all projects must demonstrate financial and economic reasons such that they 


would not otherwise go forward and be viable, 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED after due consideration, the CITY OF 


STOUGHTON hereby approves the following as its official TIF policy; and 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Policies and 


Guidelines are hereby adopted as fully set out herein and CITY staff is hereby authorized to 


implement the following policies and to make such additional changes and clarifications, (as 


approved by the City Council), as shall be deemed advisable and in the best interest of the City: 


 


A. General Policy 


 


It is the policy of the CITY to consider the judicious use of TIF for those projects which 


demonstrate a substantial and significant public benefit by constructing public improvements or 


offering other financial assistance in support of developments that will: 


·     eliminate blight 


·     strengthen the employment and economic base of the City 


·     increase property values and tax revenues 


.     Create economic stability 


·     upgrade older neighborhoods 


· implement plans and development strategies adopted by the City 


.     provide affordable housing opportunities per City Comprehensive Plan 


definitions 


 


Care will be exercised in the use of TIF to thoroughly evaluate each project to ensure that the 


benefits which will accrue from the approval of the project are appropriate for the costs which 


will result, and that they are equitable to the City as a whole. 


 


B. Policy Guidelines. 


 


The following criteria are to be used by the CITY to evaluate requests for TIF assistance: 


 


1. TIF assistance will not be considered for new residential development projects unless 


those projects:                                                                                                                        


a. occur on parcels which were platted prior to September 30, 1995; and  


b. causes the redevelopment of blighted or underutilized parcels in conformance 







  


with the City's Comprehensive Plan and any Project Area Redevelopment Plans. 


 


2 Each request for TIF assistance must demonstrate that "but for" the use of TIF assistance, 


the project is not feasible on the proposed site and that the public benefits described 


above would not be achieved. 


 


3. All requests for TIF assistance will be required to demonstrate: 


 


a. That the property tax payments expected to be generated by the project will be 


sufficient to service any tax increment debt, or other City incurred costs, in 


support of the project, within a period of no more than 10-15 years. (Developer 


agreements incorporating guarantees to this effect will be required.)  


b. The CITY may amend or adjust this requirement for projects which, in the City’s 


determination provide extraordinary public benefit. 


 


4. The actual amount of TIF assistance provided to a project will be determined at the 


discretion of the CITY on the basis of need, risk, project characteristics, developer 


qualifications and the degree to which the project meets the public objectives of the CITY 


described in Section A.  General Policies. The CITY is not obligated to provide TIF 


assistance to any project and may reject requests for TIF assistance for any reason, even 


if the project meets all criteria described herein. 


 


5. The total amount of TIF assistance in support of a project should not exceed fifteen 


percent (15%) of the total project costs. This limitation shall not apply to public 


improvements in support of the project. 


 


6. Each request for TIF assistance must include evidence that the applicant: 


 


a. Has the financial ability to complete and operate the project. 


b. Will be liable for, or contribute equity of at least fifteen percent (15%) of the total 


cost of the project or provide a performance bond for the completion of the 


project. Projects with equity contributions from the developer in excess of fifteen 


percent (15%) will be viewed more favorably. 


c. Has thoroughly explored alternative financing methods. 


 


7. The CITY will enter into a Development Agreement with the private developer on all 


projects which have been approved for TIF assistance. The Development Agreement will 


describe the obligations of both the CITY and the developer, and the terms and 


conditions of TIF assistance. Development Agreements will be secured by Developer 


personal guarantee, Bank Letter of Credit, Performance Bond, or other security 


mechanisms as deemed appropriate by the CITY. 


 


8. The City will maintain a retainage account, require a performance bond, or require other 


forms of security until each project is completed and satisfies all conditions and 


performance standards described in the Development Agreement. 


 







  


9. Requests for TIF assistance for retail and service/commercial projects should be limited 


to those projects that will promote the upgrading, expansion or retention of existing retail, 


service or commercial businesses, encourage an inflow of customers from outside the 


City or will provide services or fill retail markets that are currently unavailable or in short 


supply in the City. 


 


10. Requests for TIF assistance which include the establishment of a multi-tenant retail, 


commercial or service center, or the redevelopment of existing centers, should include 


information as to the business type of the major tenants of the project. In addition, a 


thorough market analysis should be completed which identifies: 


 


a. the population areas that will be drawn from; and,  


b. the businesses of similar types which would be competing with other City 


businesses. 


 


11. If businesses are to be relocated from other areas of the City into a TIF district, sufficient 


justification will be included to indicate why this relocation should be considered. Such 


justification shall include an analysis of the impact the relocation will have upon the 


neighborhood in which the business is currently located. 


 


12. The CITY may use TIF revenue from a project for public improvements anywhere within 


the TIF district. 


 


13. All requests for TIF assistance must clearly comply with the requirements of the TIF 


Statute and the City's adopted TIF Project Plan. 


 


 


This Resolution is being adopted by the CITY OF STOUGHTON at a duly scheduled meeting 


on August 9, 2005. 


 


APPROVED: Helen J. Johnson, Mayor 


ATTEST: Luann J. Alme, City Clerk 







  


PROCEDURES FOR REQUESTING TIF ASSISSTANCE 


 


 


I. OVERVIEW OF THE TIF REQUEST PROCESS 
 


A. Upon initial contact of a TIF request, a notification shall be forwarded to the 


Mayor of the City of Stoughton. 


B. An application for TIF assistance on a project is submitted by a private developer 


to the FINANCE DIRECTOR of the CITY OF STOUGHTON, who will notify 


the MAYOR of the application. 


C. The FINANCE DIRECTOR will review the application and determine whether 


the application is complete and whether the proposed project is eligible under the 


City’s policy, and will then forward said application along with a 


recommendation to the FINANCE COMMITTEE for consideration. 


D. The COMMITTEE reviews and discusses the application with consideration 


given to any additional material provided by City Staff. A public hearing to hear 


testimony from concerned citizens, may be held. 


E. The COMMITTEE recommends approval, denies or tables the application. 


F. The CITY COUNCIL considers the recommendation of the COMMITTEE. 


G. If approved by the CITY COUNCIL, a Development Agreement will be executed 


between the CITY and the Developer applicant. 


 


II. APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
 


A. Submission 


Submit two copies of the application to: 


City of Stoughton Finance Department 


C/o FINANCE DIRECTOR 


381 EAST MAIN STREET 


STOUGHTON, WI. 53589 


 


B. Application Fee 


A $100 processing fee must be submitted with the application. 


 


C. Preliminary Determination of Completeness 
Upon submission, the application will be reviewed to determine if it is complete. If the 


application is incomplete or if additional information is needed the applicant will be 


notified in writing that the application is not complete, and the reasons will be stated 


referring to the specific criteria that are not met, additional information required, or 


financial, legal or planning and development concerns. 


 


D. Staff Review 


Review of the application will be conducted by the Finance Director, and when deemed 


appropriate, by the City Attorney, the City's Financial Advisor and/or other advisors. 


Review time will be approximately 30 days from the date the completed application is 


submitted to the City. However, more or less time may be required for particular 







  


applications. Applications which are determined to be complete, consistent with all 


elements of the City's Comprehensive Plan, the Redevelopment Plan for the area in 


which the project will occur and in conformance with the City’s TIF policy will then be 


forwarded to the FINANCE COMMITTEE for consideration. Applicants will be notified 


in writing of the application being forwarded to the COMMITTEE.                                   


 


E. COMMITTEE Consideration 


The COMMITTEE may desire to hold one or more discussion sessions or a public 


hearing. During this period the applicant may be required to submit additional 


information. The applicant is expected to make a presentation to the COMMITTEE 


followed by the presentation of any material the City's staff desires to report. Public 


comment will then be heard, if invited, followed by a response from the applicant. After 


COMMITTEE discussion, action may be taken to approve, deny or to continue the case 


to a date certain for further consideration. 


 


If the application is approved by the COMMITTEE, the COMMITTEE will forward a 


recommendation for approval to the CITY COUNCIL 


 


City staff may require an independent feasibility study. The cost of such study shall be 


paid by the applicant and shall be prepared by a professional consultant having a 


favorable reputation for the preparation of such studies. This study would be submitted to 


the COMMITTEE for consideration. 


 


F. City Council Consideration 


The City Council may have a discussion session on the application. The recommendation 


of the COMMITTEE may be approved, denied or amended by the City Council. 


 


APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL: August 9, 2005 
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\TIF.docx 
S:\Clerks Office\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\TIF.pdf 


LASERFICHE:\Stoughton\Policies Procedures and Emergency Plans\TIF







  


APPLICATION FOR TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ("TIF") ASSISTANCE 


 


 


APPLICANT:__________________________________________________________________ 


ADDRESS:____________________________________________________________________ 


PHONE#:_____________________________________________________________________ 


FAX #:_______________________________________________________________________ 


CONTACT PERSON:___________________________________________________________ 


PROJECT NAME:______________________________________________________________ 


 


On a separate sheet of paper please answer the following questions: 


 


1. In no more than three pages provide relevant information on the Applicant's background 


and development experience. Include resumes of key individuals assigned to the project. 


 


2. Identify the Applicant's consultants involved or proposed to be involved in the project 


noting relevant experience on similar projects (i.e., civil engineer, land use planner, 


Applicant's legal counsel, Applicant's financial advisor). 


 


3. Describe the proposed project, including the size, scope, phasing, construction materials, 


and impact on parking, traffic and adjoining property. Discuss any development, 


planning, engineering, architectural or legal issues which may impact the City or 


adjoining property. Specifically outline residential development, if any, to be included in 


the project. Include any plans prepared for the project, if available. At a minimum, a 


concept plan shall be submitted with the application. 


 


4. Define the boundaries of the proposed project by address and on a map. 


 


5. Identify the property which is currently in the control of the Applicant via ownership or 


option. If under option note the option expiration date. 


 


6. Is the property currently zoned for the proposed use? If not, what zoning change will be 


required? 


 


7. Will the proposed project result in the relocation of economic activity from another 


location within the City? If so, discuss the nature of any anticipated relocations and the 


impact the relocation would have on the neighborhood where such activity is currently 


located. 


 


8. State the need and justification for TIF assistance. Explain how the applicant intends to 


demonstrate compliance with the "but for" test. Substantiate that other alternative 


methods of financing have been thoroughly explored. 


 


9. Identify sources, amounts, and status of all debt financing and/or equity funding available 


to complete the Project. Does the applicant anticipate the debt to be privately financed by 


the construction lender or developer or publicly sold? Please prepare information in the 







  


following table format: 


 


Source 


Contact Person & Phone # 


Amount  


Term  


Status  


 


10. Provide an outline of the costs associated with the development of the proposed project(s) 


and related parcel(s) located within the TIF district. Identify in the outline those costs you 


would propose to fund with TIF and the proposed payback time frame. 


 


11. In one page or less, discuss and document information used to describe the market 


feasibility of each element of the proposed project. If a formal feasibility or comparable 


studies have been prepared, attach such reports as an appendix to this application. 


 


12. Estimate the incremental property taxes to be generated by the project. 


 


13. Provide an estimate of the market value of all fixtures and equipment to be used by all 


owners or tenants of the proposed project which will be taxed as personal property. 


 


14. Identify any proposed tenants of the project. Have leases been negotiated or signed? 


What type of lease is contemplated? 


 


15. Who will own and operate the developed property? 


 


16. Briefly describe the benefits of the proposed project to the City, particularly in economic 


and quality of life terms. 


 


17. Attach a letter from a financial institution indicating that the applicant has sufficient 


financial resources to obtain the private financing for the project. 


 


18. Describe the project schedule: 


 


Preliminary Construction Start Date: 


Preliminary Construction Completion Date: 


Phasing Anticipated: 


Date Occupied or Opened: 





		R-12-2016-Stoughton TIF Policy.pdf

		TIF Policy with mark ups.pdf

		TIF Policy clean.pdf

		Use of TIF.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request, Certified Survey Map
(CSM) by Jean Nordlie for property located South of 3415 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland,
Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval 5 - 0 with the Mayor voting


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: R-13-2016 Date Introduced: February 23, 2016


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


WHEREAS, on February 8, 2016 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed and recommend
the Common Council approve the proposed ETJ Land Division (CSM) request by Jean Nordlie for property
located South of 3415 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Wisconsin; and


WHEREAS, the certified survey map request is proposed to create one residential parcel to allow the
applicant to build a home in the future; and


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as
determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and because of the distance from the City border, it is not identified on the
Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land
division (CSM) request by Jean Nordlie for property located South of 3415 State Highway 138, Town of
Rutland, Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County approval.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Nordlie ETJ CSM.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2016\2-8-16\Planning Info\ETJ Nordlie Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: January 22, 2016


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the February 8, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting and
Common Council meeting of February 23, 2016.


1. Jean Nordlie requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to create one residential
parcel of land S. of 3415 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
This extra-territorial zoning request is to allow part owner-applicant Jean Nordlie to create a
residential lot to build a home in the future. Land divisions with the City’s 1.5 mile ETJ area
require Planning Commission review and Common Council approval. The resolution, CSM
and related materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary. Staff
recommends approval contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County approval.























2/1/2016-



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line









T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2016\Planning Minutes 2-8-16.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, February 8, 2016 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice Chair; Michael
Maloney; Pat O’Connor and Scott Truehl.
Absent: Todd Krcma and Matt Hanna
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey; Parks & Recreation Director, Tom Lynch
Guests: Dennis Steinkraus; Kevin Yeska; Josh Stands; Ashley Hopfensperger; AJ Arnett; Nicole
Hines; Jordan Tilleson; Jean & Mike Nordlie; Tom Selsor


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of January 11, 2016.
Motion by Christianson to approve the minutes of January 11, 2016 as presented, 2nd by
Truehl. Motion carried 5 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson reported R-9-16 was approved and O-2-16 was a first reading at Council.


4. Status of Developments. Scheel gave an overview of the current developments as outlined
in the packet of materials. There were no questions.


5. Ashley and Tim Hopfensperger request to amend zoning ordinance sections 78-
206(1)(a)2 and 78-206(1)(a)3 related to providing water and sewer services to a duplex
and twin home. Tabled from January 11, 2016
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment would allow existing improved duplex lots with
one water and one sewer lateral already stubbed into the property to have one water lateral
and one sewer lateral from the main while splitting the water with separate shutoff’s in the
terrace and splitting the sewer in the terrace. Splitting any duplex to create a twin home in
the future will require separate water and sewer laterals from each unit to the main.


Motion by Maloney to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment
as presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 5 – 0.


6. Jean Nordlie requests extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) approval to create one
residential parcel south of 3415 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
Scheel explained the request. O’Connor questioned the lot size. Scheel stated we defer to
the County and Town to meet the County standards for lot size.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional land division request contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County
approval, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 5 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight

Jean Nordlie requests extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) approval to create one
residential parcel south of 3415 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
Scheel explained the request. O’Connor questioned the lot size. Scheel stated we defer to
the County and Town to meet the County standards for lot size.
Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional land division request contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County
approval, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 5 – 0.






		7- Nordlie ETJ CSM.pdf

		7- Nordlie ETJ CSM Resolution.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson to operate a Commercial
Animal Boarding facility (Dog Daycare) at 1115 W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends Council approval 5 – 0 with the Mayor voting


Fiscal Impact: TBD


File Number: R-14-2016 Date Introduced: February 23, 2016


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


WHEREAS, on January 11, 2016 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing and
reviewed and tabled the proposed conditional use permit request by Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson, for
property located at 1115 W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin to allow the applicant’s to provide a
compliant site plan for review; and


WHEREAS, on February 8, 2016 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed the proposed
conditional use application and recommend Council approval with contingencies listed below; and


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has determined the proposed parking which is designed to have
vehicle back into the street to exit is a safe and efficient use of this site; and


WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to operate a commercial animal boarding facility,
specifically for a dog daycare; and


WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined:
 The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony


with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;


 The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood,
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction
to guide development;


 The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property;


 The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by
public agencies serving the subject property;


 The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and







WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use
permit will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a
whole; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for
Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson to operate a commercial animal boarding facility (Dog Daycare) at 1115
W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on:


 The staff review letter dated February 3, 2015;
 Public sidewalk, landscaping and paving will need to be installed no later than June 15, 2016


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Dog Daycare 1115 W. Main Street.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2016\2-8-16\Planning Info\Hines-Tilleson Memo2.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 3, 2016


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the February 8, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting


1. Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson request a conditional use permit and site plan approval
for a commercial animal boarding use at 1115 W. Main Street.
This request is to allow a commercial animal boarding use at 1115 W. Main Street.
Commercial Animal Boarding is allowable as a conditional use within the Planned Business
District. A public hearing was held on January 11, 2016. The request was tabled to allow the
applicant to bring in a compliant site plan. The application, site plan, staff review and related
materials are provided. The Planning Commission has determined the parking design is safe
and efficient to allow for backing into the street with street parking allowed. We do not have
any recommendations for conditions except as outlined in the staff review letter dated February
3, 2016. Staff recommends approval contingent on the staff review dated February 3, 2016.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, January 11, 2016
at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public
Safety Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a
proposed Conditional Use Permit Application by Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson, for a Commercial
Animal Boarding (Dog Daycare) use at 1115 W. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. The property at
1115 W. Main Street is currently listed in Dane County records as being owned by the DES Enterprises
LLC, and is more fully described as follows:


Parcel Number: 281/0511-071-0712-1,


I M JULSETH ADD W1/2 LOT 1 & W1/2 LOT 2 (This property description is for tax purposes and
may be abbreviated)


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421


Michael P Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published December 24, 2015 Hub
Published December 31, 2015 Hub


S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Dog Daycare CUP Notice 1115 W. Main Street.doc







TO: Mayor Olson, Michael Stacey, Todd Krcma, Scott Truehl, Matt Hanna,
Ron Christenson, Greg Jenson, Eric Hohol, Rodney Scheel, Bob Kardasz


FROM: Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines JT NH
DATE: December 16, 2015
SUBJECT: Petition for Conditional Use Application


Dear Stoughton Planning Commission Members,


We are writing to you to ask that you consider a Conditional Use Application for
1115 W Main Street, on which we have made an offer to purchase. Currently 1115
W Main Street is zoned Planned Business.


As Stoughton residents and dog owners, we know there to be a need for a dog day
care center in our town that is currently not being fulfilled. We drive 1 hour round-
trip twice a day, for a total of 2 extra hours driving time, to bring our dog to east
Madison to attend dog day care. This is because there is not a closer dog day care
center to our home. Stoughton has already made great strides in meeting the needs
of dog owners, as evidenced by the excellent dog park located within Viking Park.
However, the dog park alone does not meet all of the needs of dog owners in
Stoughton. Because of this, residents are bringing their business to other nearby
towns, such as the Hound Huddle in Oregon, WI, in order to meet their need for a
dog day care. By granting a Conditional Use Application for 1115 W Main Street,
Stoughton will have the opportunity to see continued business growth and
development by allowing us to provide a dog day care center.


We appreciate your consideration. Please do not hesitate to contact us with any
questions. We can be reached by phone at 262-227-2937 or via email at
Jordan.tilleson@gmail.com or Nicole.j.hines@gmail.com.


Respectfully,
Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines



























 


Planning
Geophysical
Water Resources
Parcels


Parcel Number
House Number
CSM Text
Plat Labels
Tax Parcels


December 28, 2015
0 0.01 0.020.005 mi


0 0.02 0.040.01 km


1:559


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


February 3, 2016
Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines
2521 Williams Drive
Stoughton, WI. 53589


Dear Applicant:


I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use application and site plan approval
request for a commercial animal boarding use (Dog Daycare) at 1115 W. Main Street, Stoughton,
WI. 53589. This request will go back to the Planning Commission for review on February 8, 2016.


1. The property at 1115 W. Main Street, Stoughton is zoned PB – Planned Business. Commercial
Animal Boarding is allowable as a conditional use within the Planned Business district. A
public hearing for the conditional use permit was held on January 11, 2015. The request was
tabled due to lack of a compliant site plan. We have now received a survey to review zoning
requirements. There may be additional information or changes needed as outlined in this
review.


2. Commercial animal boarding is described as follows: Commercial animal boarding facility land
uses include land uses which provide short-term and/or long-term boarding for animals.
Examples of these land uses include commercial kennels and commercial stables. Exercise
yards, fields, training areas, and trails associated with such land uses are considered accessory to
such land uses and do not require separate consideration. The proposed use meets this
description.


3. Regulations related to commercial animal boarding are as follows:
a. Each unsupervised animal shall be provided with their own indoor containment area.


For supervised animals, a minimum of 1 containment area or 5% of all animals shall be
provided a containment area, whichever is greater.


b. Special events such as shows, exhibitions, and contests shall only be permitted when a
temporary use permit has been secured. (See Section 78-906.)


We will need information to confirm this requirement.


4. It appears the buildings are legal non-conforming or grandfathered regarding setback
requirements. Any future building additions will be required to meet the current setback
standards or a variance could be requested from the Board of Appeals. No additions are
planned at this time.







5. The parking requirement for commercial animal boarding is one space per 1,000 square feet of
gross floor area. A 2,640 square foot building requires 3 parking stalls. The plan meets this
requirement.


6. The Planning Commission and Common Council can make a finding that the proposed use is
generally consistent with the recommendations of the City Comprehensive Plan which depicts
this property as Planned Mixed Use.


7. Handicap parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as
specified by state and federal regulations. The handicap stall will need to be the eastern most
portion of the proposed handicap parking location with the access aisle being on the
western portion. Additionally there will need to be a hard surfaced access to the building.


8. Except for handicap parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a
minimum width of 9 feet. The plan appears to meet this requirement.


9. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile parking
space requirement. One space is required and is delineated on the plan.


10. The parking aisle width for 45 degree parking shall be a minimum of 12 feet. The plan
appears to meet this requirement.


11. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-residential
uses, as measured at the right-of-way line. Access drives may be flared between the right-of-
way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be exceeded with
explicit Plan Commission approval. The plan appears to meet this requirement. The
concrete apron is proposed to be moved. The curb will need to be replaced at city
standards.


12. Site circulation shall be designed to provide for the safe and efficient movement of all traffic
entering, exiting, and on the site. The proposed parking is designed to have vehicles back
into the street to exit. A determination will need to be made by the Planning Commission
whether this is safe and efficient for this site.


13. A public sidewalk is required to be installed to city standards along the front lot line. This
will need to be delineated on the plan. The sidewalk shall be 5 feet wide, 6 inches thick
through the driveway and 4 inches thick elsewhere.


14. The minimum paved surface setback from a side lot line is 5 feet while the minimum is 10 feet
from a right-of-way line. All off-street parking and circulation areas shall be paved with a hard
all-weather surface, to the satisfaction of the Director of Planning & Development. The plan
appears to meet this requirement.


15. Exterior lighting standards.
Off-street parking lighting is not required for less than 6 cars. Any installed lighting will
need to meet all zoning and building code requirements including the lighting element
shall not be visible from a residentially zoned property.







16. Landscaping will be required for any newly paved parking areas at 60 points per 20 parking
stalls or 10,000 square feet of parking area whichever is greater. Nine landscaping points will
be necessary. The plan meets this requirement.


17. The bufferyard requirement for a Planned Business property when adjacent to an SR-4 Single
Family Residential property is 0.2 opacity. One option is a 10-foot bufferyard width and 6 feet
of solid fencing. There are other options to meet this requirement which can be reviewed at
Table 78-610(4)(b) of the Zoning Ordinance. Bufferyards are required to eliminate or reduce
potential nuisances. The bufferyard starts at the 20-foot front building setback. We will
need to know the type of materials used for the fence. The better side is required to face
the adjacent property. The proposed fence will need to be moved to 10 feet from the side
lot line for the area that is to be used for a dog run area. A zoning permit is necessary
prior to fence installation. Paving is allowed within the 10-foot buffer area but not
parking.


18. Exterior trash storage shall be located within a gated enclosure which completely screens the
view a said trash. The exterior of said enclosure shall be constructed of some or all of the
materials used on the main building. The enclosure shall be located a minimum of 5 feet from
the side and rear property lines and shall not be located in the front yard or required street yard.
We recommend placing trash bins inside to eliminate the need for an enclosure or move
the enclosure to the rear of the property in compliance with these requirements.


19. The minimum landscape surface ratio is 25 %. The plan will need to be re-evaluated for this
requirement since the figures have not changed from the original survey/site plan.


20. Contact Robert Kardasz, Stoughton Utilities for electric, water and wastewater services at
608-873-33789.


21. A street opening permit from the Stoughton Street Department (608-873-6303) will be
necessary for work in the street right-of-way.


22. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage. This is expected.


23. Proposed signage will require a detailed plan and permit prior to installation. Signage must
meet the requirements of zoning code, articleVIII.


24. Final occupancy will not be granted until the site meets all approved requirements. If
weather does not allow installation of sidewalk/curbing and paving of parking/access and
approach, installation shall be by June 15, 2016.


25. The City is currently making changes to the street tree ordinance which may require the
installation of street trees or payment in lieu of installation. Contact Street Superintendent
Karl Manthe regarding street trees at 608-873-6303 or kmanthe@ci.stoughton.wi.us


26. State approved plans may be necessary and appropriate City of Stoughton building permits are
required before any construction or remodeling but are not necessary for the City review
process.







If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\property log folder\1115 w main street\dog daycare cup review letter 16.doc







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
2/8/16
Page 2 of 4


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2016\Planning Minutes 2-8-16.doc


7. Tom Vavra, representing Dhillon Petroleum LLC requests certified survey map (CSM)
approval to combine the parcels at 1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street.
A CSM was not submitted on time to be reviewed for this meeting. Scheel recommended
tabling the item. The applicant was not present.


Motion by O’Connor to Table this agenda item until the applicant provides a CSM, 2nd by
Christianson. Motion carried 5 – 0.


8. Tom Vavra, representing Dhillon Petroleum LLC requests Specific Implementation
Plan approval to accommodate a retail building reconstruction including a drive-thru
at 1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street.
Scheel recommends tabling the item since the applicant will need to come back with the
CSM. An updated plan will need to be submitted to address the staff review letter and
general development plan approval. The applicant was not present.


Motion by Truehl to Table this agenda item until the applicant provides an updated specific
implementation plan, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 5 – 0.


9. Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson request a conditional use permit and site plan
approval for a commercial animal boarding use at 1115 W. Main Street.


Tabled on January 11, 2016
Scheel gave an overview of the request.


O’Connor questioned the driveway width. Scheel stated the driveway width at the property
line is 30 feet while the lot width is approximately 66 feet.


Scheel noted the resolution states the “Planning Commission has determined the proposed
parking which is designed to have vehicles back into the street to exit is a safe and efficient
use of this site” if recommended for approval.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use permit
contingent on the staff review letter dated February 3, 2016 and the Planning Commission
approved the site plan contingent on the staff review letter dated February 3, 2016, 2nd by
Christianson. Motion carried 5 – 0.


10. Forward Development Group requests certified survey map (CSM) approval for Lot 4,
Kettle Park West.
Scheel explained the request and stated splitting the lot creates zoning issues such as shared
stormwater management, overlap of parking and access, and photometric standards for the
exterior lighting.
The group discussed:


• Whether to split the lot, condo at a later date or maybe one owner would control the
whole lot.


• Uses would likely be retail or restaurant but not known at this time.
• Parking will be influenced by the type of use.



mstacey

Highlight

Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson request a conditional use permit and site plan
approval for a commercial animal boarding use at 1115 W. Main Street.
Tabled on January 11, 2016
Scheel gave an overview of the request.
O’Connor questioned the driveway width. Scheel stated the driveway width at the property
line is 30 feet while the lot width is approximately 66 feet.
Scheel noted the resolution states the “Planning Commission has determined the proposed
parking which is designed to have vehicles back into the street to exit is a safe and efficient
use of this site” if recommended for approval.
Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use permit
contingent on the staff review letter dated February 3, 2016 and the Planning Commission
approved the site plan contingent on the staff review letter dated February 3, 2016, 2nd by
Christianson. Motion carried 5 – 0.






		8- Dog Daycare 1115 W. Main Street.pdf

		8- Hines-Tilleson Commercial Animal Boarding CUP Resolution.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write off of accounts deemed
uncollectible as of December 31, 2015.


Committee Action: 7 - 0


Fiscal Impact: $15,561.04


File Number: Date Introduced: February 23, 2016


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff attempted all possible collection efforts or received notification of
discharge of debt from bankruptcy for customers totaling $15,561.04, and


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities is required to cease collection efforts due to the legal and final discharge
of debt, and


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on February 15, 2016 to consider this request,
approved the request, and recommends approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, now
therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed to write off uncollectible customer accounts totaling $15,561.04 and record the amount as
a 2015 operating expense.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote








City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION TO THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE


Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement for the
City of Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility to participate in an Adaptive Management
Plan for the Yahara Watershed with the Yahara River Watershed Improvement Network (Yahara
WINS) Group.


WINS) Group.Committee Action: 7 - 0


Fiscal Impact: $5,000 annually.


File Number: Date Introduced: February 23, 2016


WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City of Stoughton for Stoughton Utilities to operate a
wastewater treatment facility, and


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has participated in an Adaptive Management Pilot Program with the
Yahara WINS Group from 2014 through 2016 for the City of Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment
Facility, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on February 15, 2016 to consider and approve the
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Yahara WINS Group for the City of Stoughton Utilities Wastewater
Treatment Facility and recommends approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Yahara WINS Group
for the City of Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote








City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to enter into the Intergovernmental Agreement for
an Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed


Committee Action: Public Works Committee Recommends Approval 4 – 0


Fiscal Impact: $11,000 (approximately) per year starting in 2017


Date Introduced: February 23, 2016File Number: R-21-2016


WHEREAS, the City has been participating in a collaborative pilot study related to TSS (Total
Suspended Solids) and TP (Total Phosphorus) reduction as part of the Rock River TMDL (Total
Maximum Daily Load), and


WHEREAS, the City is required to reduce TSS and TP to load allocations assigned for each watershed
reach in which we discharge stormwater, and


WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Agreement allows the group of municipalities to implement
compliance measures jointly, and


WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee met on November 17, 2015 to discuss the scope of the
project with Dave Taylor of MMSD (Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District) and considered the
agreement at their meeting on February 16, 2016, now therefore







BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to authorize and direct the
proper city official(s) to enter into the Intergovernmental Agreement for an Adaptive Management Plan
for the Yahara Watershed.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R- -16 Adaptive Management Agreement.docx







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: January 22, 2016


To: Public Works Committee


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: City Participation in the Adaptive Management Program


The City has been participating in a collaborative pilot study related to TSS (Total Suspended
Solids) and TP (Total Phosphorus) reduction as part of the Rock River TMDL (Total Maximum
Daily Load). The City is required to reduce TSS and TP to load allocations assigned for each
watershed reach in which we discharge stormwater. In November, Mr. Dave Taylor of MMSD (
Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District) made a presentation about the project to the
committee.


The pilot study is now moving into the implementation phase and the City needs to enter into the
Intergovernmental Agreement that allows the group of municipalities to implement compliance
measures jointly. The estimated annual cost for the City will be $11,000 with the first payment
planned for the 2017 Budget. The Intergovernmental Agreement is provided and is
recommended for your approval.


If you have any questions, please contact me.







Memorandum


To: Yahara WINS Pilot Project Municipal Participants


From: Dave Taylor


Date: January 21, 2016


Subject: Intergovernmental Agreement


A December 17, 2015 memorandum to municipal participants in the Yahara WINS Pilot Project
included the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for the full scale adaptive management
project. We received some suggested revisions to the IGA, which prompted us to make one last
call for suggested revisions, with comments due by January 12th.


Most of the comments received were either minor editorial or clarifying comments and we
have done our best to accommodate them in the attached revised final version of the IGA.
There are a few revisions that I want to specifically call your attention to:


 Section 3 (Authority Of Members To Participate): This section has been revised to give
municipalities options for how they may authorize participation in the IGA.  Previous
language required authorization by resolution.  Revised language allows authorization
by resolution or other binding action by the governing body or person authorized to act
for a municipality.  A copy of the document authorizing participation shall be sent to and
be maintained on file with the Executive Committee formed under the IGA.


 Section 6: (Executive Committee): This section has been revised to provide additional
clarity that Member representatives for the cities and villages participating in this
agreement will vote to select their representative to the Executive Committee, and
Member representatives for the towns participating in this agreement will vote to select
their representative to the Executive Committee, and the Member representatives of
the group as a whole will vote to select the at large representative.


This section has also been revised to eliminate staggered terms of the Executive
Committee and text has been added to indicate members of the Executive Committee
can be re-elected and serve more than one term.







 Section 7: (Officers): The language stating that an officer can be removed without cause
has been eliminated.


 Section 11 (Liability of the Executive Committee and/or Group): In 11(a) the language
regarding cost allocation with respect to administrative or legal proceedings where
liability is not directly attributable to the conduct of a specific member has been
clarified. Those costs will be allocated among all Members proportional to the
phosphorus reduction associated with each Member as determined consistent with this
Agreement.


In 11(b), the term “binding mediation” has been replaced with the term “mediation”.
Also, this section is clarified to state that the cost of mediation shall be borne equally by
each member to the mediation.


 Section 12 (Term of Agreement and Withdrawal): Section 12(b) has been revised to
clarify that the Agreement can be terminated at a duly noticed meeting of the Group (as
opposed to a duly noticed meeting of the Executive Committee) upon a two thirds vote
by Member Representatives of the Group to terminate the Agreement at least 270 days
prior to the end of a WPDES permit term for which the Adaptive Management Plan is a
permit condition.  In no event shall termination become effective prior to the end of a
WPDES permit term.


 Section 13 (Adaptive Management Administration): Language has been added that
briefly describes the purpose of the Adaptive Management Plan.


The signature page has also been slightly revised.


We continue to ask communities that will participate in the full scale project to take the
necessary steps to execute the IGA by March 31, 2016.


As always, I am available to attend a board or council meeting to answer any questions you
might have as you take action on executing the IGA.  I can be reached by email
(davet@madsewer.org) or by phone (608-222-1201, ext. 276).







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 1


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR
AN ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT PLAN


FOR THE YAHARA WATERSHED


WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. § 66. 0301, entitled "Intergovernmental cooperation,"


provides that any municipality (defined as including but not limited to any state agency,


city, village, town, county, sanitary district, metropolitan sewerage district or sewer utility


district) may contract with other municipalities for the furnishing of services, and the joint


exercise of any power or duty required or authorized by law;


WHEREAS, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has approved Total


Maximum Daily Loads for Total Phosphorus and Total Suspended Solids (TSS) in the


Rock River Basin (the “Rock River TMDL” or “TMDL”), which includes the Yahara


Watershed as shown on Exhibit A;


WHEREAS, municipalities who own Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWs)


and/or Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s) in the Yahara Watershed are


required to meet surface water quality standards and/or not exceed wasteload allocations


for phosphorus and TSS pursuant to the provisions of Wis. Admin Code § NR 217 and/or


the Rock River TMDL;


WHEREAS, Wis. Admin Code § NR 217. 18 allows sources holding a Wisconsin


Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) permit the option known as adaptive







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 2


management which involves developing an Adaptive Management Plan involving point


and nonpoint sources to achieve water quality standards and TMDL allocations;


WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. § 283. 13 (7) allows adaptive management to be used to


address TMDL allocations for both phosphorus and TSS over four permit terms;


WHEREAS, in 2012 Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District (District) developed


an adaptive management pilot project with other interested parties within the Yahara


watershed as set forth in a Memorandum of Understanding for an Adaptive Management


Pilot Project in the Yahara Watershed;


WHEREAS, on December 14, 2014, the District entered into a Memorandum of


Understanding with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) regarding the


manner in which a full scale Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed would


be developed and evaluated;


WHEREAS, the District has committed to developing an Adaptive Management


Plan to fulfill its phosphorus compliance obligations under its WPDES permit and fulfill


the phosphorus TMDL obligations of other permittees;


WHEREAS, the undersigned municipalities within the Yahara Watershed, (Parties)


wish to join together to jointly participate in the Adaptive Management Plan;


WHEREAS, the Parties desire to create an intergovernmental agreement and form a


group known as "The Yahara Watershed Improvement Network (Yahara WINS) Group” or


simply "the Group";


WHEREAS, the Parties desire to create a commission that will administer such


participation, information gathering, projects and activities of the Group all as set forth in


this Agreement;







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 3


WHEREAS, the Parties desire to implement this Agreement in a collaborative,


cooperative, manner to advance the Adaptive Management Plan;


WHEREAS, the Parties to this Agreement anticipate that the Group will contract


and work collaboratively with agricultural producers, non-governmental organizations,


county agencies and other entities to advance the Adaptive Management Plan;


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and


other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby


acknowledged, the Parties agree to create this Intergovernmental Agreement for an


Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed (“Agreement”) as follows:


1. GOALS OF THE GROUP.


The Parties hereby agree to cooperate to exercise their municipal powers jointly for:


a. Providing review and comments on the Adaptive Management Plan


prepared by the District;


b. Contracting with consultants, legal counsel, and other parties to


further the development, implementation and evaluation of the Adaptive Management Plan;


c. Coordinating or contracting with the DNR and other pertinent


agencies, units of local government, and non-governmental organizations and entities to


achieve the goals of the Adaptive Management Plan;


d. Pooling resources in accordance with the provisions of cost


allocations in Exhibit B to achieve the goals of the Adaptive Management Plan.


e. Achieving compliance with WPDES permit requirements related to


the Rock River TMDL.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 4


2. MEMBERS OF THE GROUP


a. In General. The members of the Group (“Members”) created by this


Agreement are the Wisconsin municipalities (defined as including but not limited to any


state agency, city, village, town, county, sanitary district, metropolitan sewerage district or


sewer utility district) who own Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTWs) and/or


Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s) or municipalities who have land within


areas served by the Adaptive Management Plan, and which have duly executed identical


counterparts or copies of the Agreement pursuant to Section 3 (“Members” collectively and


“Member” individually) on or before April 15, 2016.


b. Changes in Membership. Additional Wisconsin municipalities may


become Members of the Group with the consent of a majority of the Members by becoming


Parties to this Agreement on the condition that payments be made to cover their share of


costs based on their phosphorus allocation for the years from the date of this Agreement to


their membership date. Members may cease to be Members and Parties to this Agreement


pursuant to Section 12.


c. Representative to the Group. All Group Members shall designate a


representative and an alternate representative. A Member may remove or replace its


representative to the Group at will, with or without cause, at any time. All designations of


representatives, alternatives and replacements shall be made in writing, signed on behalf of


the Member and delivered to the Secretary of the Executive Committee. Each Member’s


representative shall have the authority to act on the Member’s behalf at meetings held


under Section 5.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 5


3. AUTHORITY OF MEMBERS TO PARTICIPATE.


a. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to authority granted under


Wis. Stat. § 66. 0301. Each municipality identified in Section 2. a. that wants to become


a member of the Group shall authorize participation in this Agreement by resolution or


other binding action by the governing body or person authorized to act for such


municipality.


b. By authorizing participation, each Member agrees to the terms and


conditions of this Agreement, to the establishment of the Executive Committee created by


this Agreement and to appoint a Member representative to the Group;


c. A copy of the document authorizing participation shall be sent to and


be maintained on file with the Executive Committee.


4. POWERS OF THE GROUP


The Group, acting through Group Member Representatives, shall have the following


powers:


a. To elect the members of the Executive Committee as set forth in


Section 6.


b. To approve the five-year and annual budgets under Section 8.


c. To approve the bylaws proposed by the Executive Committee.


d. To share information and advise the Executive Committee on all


matters including elements of the Adaptive Management Plan.


5. MEETINGS OF THE GROUP


a. The Group shall meet no less than four times per year.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 6


b. A quorum shall be a majority of the Group Member Representatives and


must include the representatives from the District and any other member who contributes at


least one fifth of the allocated cost under Exhibit B. If a quorum is not present the


members present may meet and share information, but no action may be taken.


c. Unless otherwise expressly provided by this Agreement, all votes of the


Group Member Representatives shall be by a majority of the Group Member


Representatives present at a meeting where there is a quorum.


d. All meetings shall be open meetings and require public notice in accordance


with Wisconsin’s open meeting laws. The Group shall encourage the participation of other


interested parties including agricultural producers and nongovernmental entities.


6. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE


a. Creation of Executive Committee. There is created a five member


Executive Committee which will be a commission under Wis. Stat. § 66. 0301(2) and (3),


to administer the joint activities of the Yahara WINS Group. This commission shall be


formally referred to as THE YAHARA WINS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, and referred


to in this Agreement as the "Executive Committee". This Executive Committee shall


operate as a governmental body under Wis. Stat. § 19. 82(1).


b. Members of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee


shall be comprised of five Member representatives and two non-Member advisors.


(1) The Executive Committee members shall include a


representative from the Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District and a representative from


any Member, other than the District, who contributes at least one fifth of the allocated cost


under Exhibit B. Of the remaining members, one must be from a city or village, one from







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 7


a town, and one will be an at large position. Member representatives for the cities and


villages participating in this agreement will vote to select their representative to the


Executive Committee, and Member representatives for the towns participating in this


agreement will vote to select their representative to the Executive Committee, and the


Member representatives of the group as a whole will vote to select the at large


representative.


(2) Recognizing the key collaborative roles played by Dane


County and members of the agricultural community in the Adaptive Management Pilot


Project and their anticipated roles as this Agreement moves forward, Dane County and the


Yahara Pride Farm Group may each appoint an advisor to the Executive Committee. The


Executive Committee may in its discretion appoint additional advisors. The advisors shall


be given notice of all Executive Committee meetings and may participate in such meetings


as non-voting members.


c. Term. The term of the three elected members of the Executive


Committee shall be for five year terms and the elected members may be reelected for one


or more additional terms.


d. Purposes and Powers of the Executive Committee.


(1) To make, amend and repeal bylaws and rules related to the


purpose and operation of the Group subject to approval by the Group.


(2) To invest funds not required for immediate disbursement in


properties or securities as permitted by state law.


(3) To make and execute contracts and other instruments of any


name or type necessary or convenient for the exercise of the powers granted herein,


including contracts with engineers, legal counsel, administrative staff and other consultants.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 8


(4) To accept contributions of capital from Members or third


parties.


(5) To do all acts and things necessary or convenient for the


conduct of its business and the general welfare of the Group and the Parties and to carry out


the purposes and powers granted to it by this Agreement.


(6) To sue, and be sued, complain and defend in all courts, and


also, appear in or before applicable governmental agencies administrative tribunals and


legislative bodies.


e. No Compensation. The members of the Executive Committee shall


serve without compensation, provided, however, that the Executive Committee shall have


discretion to reimburse members of the Executive Committee for reasonable expenses


incurred for special services to the Executive Committee.


f. Quorum. A quorum shall be a majority of the members of the


Executive Committee and must include the representative from the District and the


representative of any Member (other than the District) who contributes at least one fifth of


the allocated cost under Exhibit B. No action may be taken in the absence of a quorum.


g. Voting. The members of the Executive Committee shall vote upon


matters in the following manner:


(1) Voting in General. Unless otherwise expressly provided by


this Agreement, the bylaws, or some other subsequent action of the Executive Committee,


all votes shall be by a majority of the members of the Executive Committee present at a


meeting where there is a quorum.


(2) Voting on Matters Which May Affect WPDES Permit


Compliance. The Executive Committee shall provide written notice to all Members of any







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 9


Executive Committee proposed or recommended action potentially affecting any Member’s


WPDES permit, other than the development and implementation of the Adaptive


Management Plan. Such actions include the following: (i) the development or


implementation of terms and conditions of a WPDES permit; (ii) a violation of a WPDES


permit, (iii) a WPDES permit modification or revocation (iv) a change in WPDES permit


limits or compliance plan; or (v) any other action that could jeopardize a Member’s


WPDES permit compliance. Any Member so notified has 30 days from the date of the


notice to provide a written objection to the Secretary of the Executive Committee to any


such actions that affect its WPDES permit. In such a case, no final action may be taken by


the Executive Committee without the further written consent of the objecting Member.


(h) Meeting. The Executive Committee shall meet no less frequently


than quarterly. Additional meetings may be held at the request of any member of the


Executive Committee.


7. OFFICERS.


a. Officers of the Executive Committee. The Officers of the Executive


Committee are a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, a Treasurer and such other


Officers as the Executive Committee may designate. The President shall be the District


representative. The Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer and any other officers shall be


elected by the members of the Executive Committee from among the members of the


Executive Committee and shall serve five year terms.


b. Dual Signature Required. The signatures of two officers shall be


required on all forms of approval for payment, and all legally binding documents executed


in the name of the Executive Committee or the Group.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 10


c. Duties. Unless otherwise determined by the Executive Committee,


the duties of the officers shall include the following:


(1) President. The President shall be the principal executive


officer of the Executive Committee, shall preside at all meetings of the Executive


Committee and set the agenda.


(2) Vice-President. In the absence of the President, or in the


event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of


the President.


(3) Secretary. The Secretary shall keep minutes of the meetings


of the Executive Committee in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all


notices are duly given in accordance with this Agreement, or as required by law; and be


custodian of the Executive Committee's records. The Secretary shall take such actions as


are prudent and necessary to maintain the public records at the offices of the District in


accordance with Wisconsin’s public records laws.


(4) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge and custody of


and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Group and shall have charge of the


financial records of the Group. The Treasurer will work with District staff to set up a


segregated account for the funds of the Group. The Treasurer shall take such actions as are


prudent and necessary to maintain the public records at the offices of the District in


accordance with Wisconsin’s public records laws.


d. Removal. An officer other than the President may be removed from


office with cause upon a majority vote of the members of the Executive Committee.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 11


8. BUDGET


The Executive Committee shall prepare budget documents as follows:


a. Project Budget. The 20 year adaptive management cost to Members


and the associated annual cost are listed in Exhibit B to this Agreement.


b. Five Year Budget. The Executive Committee shall break down the


20 year adaptive management costs into five year intervals corresponding with the


estimated permit terms. The Five Year Budget shall be approved by a majority of the


Member Representatives present in the meeting of the Group in which action on the Project


Budget is taken. The Five Year Budget shall be updated no less than every five years and


approved by the Group. Estimated project costs shall be allocated equally over the 20 year


Adaptive Management Plan period to the extent practicable.


c. Annual Budget. The Executive Committee shall prepare a detailed


annual budget of the estimated expenditures associated with the Adaptive Management


Plan for the next calendar year, and present the annual budget to the Group for review no


later than September 30th of each year. The annual budget shall be consistent with the Five


Year Budget approved in Section 8 (b), and shall be approved by October 31st of each year


by a majority of the Member Representatives of the Group present at the meeting in which


action on the annual budget is taken. The Executive Committee shall send invoices to


Members consistent with the annual cost shown in Exhibit B, subject to any revision


consistent with Section 9 of this Agreement on or before December 15 of each year. The


first invoice under this Agreement will be sent to Members on or before December 15,


2016 and will be for the calendar year 2017. Invoices will be sent to Members annually


thereafter on or before December 15th of each year. Payments based on each annual


invoice shall be made in two equal installments. The first installment shall be made on or







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 12


before February 28th of each year and the second installment shall be made on or before


June 30th of each year.


d. Funds for 2016 are based on a continuation of annual payments


made by the participants to the Adaptive Management Pilot Project at the same funding


level as 2015. The Executive Committee shall receive any such payments to further the


purposes of this Agreement and subject to the audit and reporting requirements set forth in


Section 10.


9. CHARGES TO MEMBERS.


a. Costs shall be allocated among Members as shown in Exhibit B,


except as otherwise provided in this Section. Cost allocations in Exhibit B are based on


phosphorus load reductions and are determined by multiplying the total adaptive


management project cost by the fraction of the total pounds of required project phosphorus


reduction needed by each Member to meet its TMDL allocation under current conditions.


For example, if the required phosphorus reduction of an individual member is equal to 5


percent of the total pounds of phosphorus reduction from all sources in this adaptive


management project, that member is assigned 5 percent of the total project cost. For the


purpose of Exhibit B, required phosphorus reductions were determined as follows:


(1) Point Source Members: For the purpose of this section,


Point Source Members are those members who own or operate facilities identified in


Appendices P, Q, R and S of the Rock River TMDL. The required phosphorus reduction is


determined by subtracting the TMDL allocated phosphorus load from the current condition


phosphorus load, with the current condition phosphorus load defined as the most recent


five year average load (2010 thru 2014) using data obtained from the DNR. For all Point







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 13


Source Members, the allocated phosphorus load is consistent with the allocation specified


in the TMDL. For Point Source Members that own or operate POTWs, required


phosphorus reductions also factor in the need to meet the interim concentration limits


specified in Section 14 (b).


(2) MS4 Members: For the purpose of this section MS4


Members are those Members who own Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems as


identified in Appendices T, U, and V of the Rock River TMDL, except that the University


of Wisconsin-Madison shall also be considered an MS4 Member. The required


phosphorus reduction for MS4 Members is determined by subtracting the TMDL allocated


phosphorus load from the TMDL baseline phosphorus load.


b. Members shall commit to payment in accordance with the schedule
in Exhibit B.


c. Notwithstanding Exhibit B, it is recognized that MS4 Members may


update stormwater modeling consistent with the DNR guidance document titled “TMDL


Guidance for MS4 Permits: Planning, Implementation and Modeling Guidance” (October


20, 2014). If the updated modeling is reviewed and approved by DNR, and shows a


required annual phosphorus reduction that is different than what was used to develop the


cost allocation in Exhibit B, the cost for that MS4 Member in Exhibit B will be adjusted as


follows:


Exhibit B Cost x Revised phosphorus reduction (lbs/yr) =  Revised Cost
Initial phosphorus reduction (lbs/yr)







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 14


If the revised phosphorus reduction information is received by the Executive Committee on


or before September 1st of any year, the revised cost will be applied to all years going


forward. For example, if data is received on or before September 1, 2017 that results in a


revised cost being calculated, that revised cost will be applied to annual payments


beginning in 2018. Additionally, a true-up will be allowed at the end of every five year


WPDES permit term to reflect practices that may have been added during that WPDES


permit term that result in a revised phosphorus reduction and therefore a revised cost,


provided those reductions are in excess of the baseline reductions in Section 14 (a).


Revised costs would be calculated using the above formula and would be applied to annual


payments going forward.


d. If an MS4 makes an initial payment in 2017 based on Exhibit B and


subsequently submits information that results in a revised cost that is less than shown in


Exhibit B, the amount of overpayment shall be credited to the MS4 over the next four year


period in equal annual installments. If an MS4 makes an initial payment in 2017 based on


Exhibit B and subsequently submits information that results in a revised cost that is greater


than shown in Exhibit B, the underpayment shall be recovered from the MS4 over the next


four year period in equal annual installments.


e. Notwithstanding Exhibit B, the costs for Point Source Members will


be revised at the end of 2016 using the most recent five year phosphorus load averaging


period if it is different than the averaging period used in developing the cost allocations in


Exhibit B. The cost will be adjusted as follows:


Exhibit B Cost x Revised phosphorus reduction (lbs/yr) = Revised Cost
Initial phosphorus reduction (lbs/yr)







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 15


The revised cost will be applied to the years going forward. Additionally, a recalculation


of the phosphorus load will be made at the end of every five year WPDES permit term


using the most recent five year average and will be used to calculate a revised cost, which


will be applied to annual payments for the years going forward. The revised cost will be


calculated using the formula in this section.


f. MS4 Members and Point Source Members participating in this


agreement may choose to accomplish some of their TMDL required phosphorus reduction


independently and therefore “purchase” only a portion of their required phosphorus


reduction through adaptive management. In this case, the Exhibit B cost or the Revised


Cost (whichever is applicable) will be adjusted by multiplying it by the fraction of the


required phosphorus reduction that is purchased through adaptive management. For


example if an MS4 Member or Point Source Member purchases ninety-five percent of its


required phosphorus load through adaptive management, the cost would be revised as


follows:


Exhibit B Cost or Revised cost (whichever is applicable) x 0. 95 = Adjusted Cost


g. MS4 Members and Point Source Members choosing to purchase


only a portion of their required phosphorus reduction through adaptive management agree


that they must have a plan in place to accomplish the portion not purchased. The plan


should identify significant anticipated milestones. In addition, they agree to provide a


summary to the Group at a frequency of at least once every two years specifying progress


made in achieving the reductions not accomplished through adaptive management.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 16


MS4 Members and Point Source Members shall specify at the time they execute this


agreement the portion of their required phosphorus reduction, expressed in pounds per


year, which they will accomplish independently. The adaptive management project costs


will be reviewed at least 360 days prior to the end of a five-year WPDES permit term for


which the Adaptive Management Plan is a permit condition. The costs may be adjusted


based on this review and upon approval by a majority of the Members. Adjustments (if


any) may result in either a lower or higher charge to members going forward. Adjustments


(if any) in the charge to Members will be made at the start of the next five-year WPDES


permit term and will be made proportional to the required phosphorus reduction of


Members. Adjustments will be reflected in the Five Year Budget under Section 8.


10. AUDIT AND REPORTING


a. The Executive Committee shall arrange for a financial audit of the


Group’s financial records on an annual basis by an independent accounting firm using


generally accepted accounting principles.


b. The Executive Committee shall prepare an annual report and provide


it to all Members and to other government agencies as may be required. In addition to


containing financial information, the annual report shall describe activities undertaken and


progress made over the preceding year with respect to implementation of the Adaptive


Management Plan. The annual report shall review the effectiveness of the measures


undertaken as part of the Adaptive Management Plan and to the extent possible document


the amount of phosphorus reduced by each of the project elements implemented under this







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 17


Adaptive Management Plan. The annual report shall be distributed to the Group and


published on the Group’s website by June 30th of each year.


11. LIABILITY OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND/OR GROUP.


a. In the event any costs or expenses are imposed on the Group or the


Executive Committee as a result of any judicial or administrative proceeding or settlement


thereof, and the liability is not directly attributable to the conduct of a specific Member or


Members, the costs and expenses shall be treated as a cost of the Group to be allocated


among all Members proportional to the phosphorus reduction associated with each Member


as determined consistent with this Agreement.


b. If any costs or expenses are imposed on the Group or the Executive


Committee as a result of any judicial or administrative proceeding or settlement thereof,


and the liability is directly attributable to the conduct of a specific Member or Members,


the costs and expenses shall be allocated among those Members whose actions caused the


imposition of the costs or expenses to the Group or Executive Committee, in proportion to


their responsibility as determined by the presiding official of the judicial or administrative


proceeding, or if no such determination, by the Executive Committee. Any member of the


Executive Committee who represents a Member with an interest in the determination shall


recuse themselves from all participation on the Executive Committee as to that issue. Any


Member not satisfied with the decision of the Executive Committee can request the issue


be resolved through mediation. The costs of mediation are to be borne equally by each


Member to the mediation.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 18


12. TERM OF AGREEMENT AND WITHDRAWAL.


a. The term of this Agreement shall begin on April 15, 2016 and will


generally coincide with the term of the approved Adaptive Management Plan which is


anticipated to be approximately 20 years from approval.


b. This Agreement shall terminate upon conclusion of the Adaptive


Management Plan or termination of the Adaptive Management Plan if the Adaptive


Management Plan is terminated by DNR. This Agreement may also be terminated at a


duly noticed meeting of the Group, upon a two thirds vote by Member Representatives of


the Group to terminate the Agreement, at least 270 days prior to the end of a WPDES


permit term for which the Adaptive Management Plan is a permit condition. In no event


shall termination become effective prior to the end of a WPDES permit term.


c. An individual Member may withdraw from the Agreement by


providing notice at least 270 days prior to the end of a five-year WPDES permit term for


which the Adaptive Management Plan is a permit condition, if the Member has paid its


contribution for the five year WPDES permit period.


13. ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION


a. The Adaptive Management Plan shall be prepared by the District.


The purpose of the Adaptive Management Plan when implemented is to fulfill the


phosphorus TMDL obligations of Members, after accounting for baseline requirements that


Members are required to meet individually pursuant to Section 14, and after accounting for


adjustments that may be made pursuant to Section 9. TSS reductions associated with


phosphorus reduction practices will also be quantified as part of the Adaptive Management


Plan. If this Agreement is in effect prior to the submittal of the Adaptive Management







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 19


Plan to DNR by the District, then the District shall submit the Adaptive Management Plan


to the Group for review and comment at least 60 days prior to District submittal to DNR.


b. Every five years as the WPDES permits come up for renewal, the


District will prepare any amendment to the Adaptive Management Plan necessary to


achieve the project goals and approval by the DNR. The District shall submit any Adaptive


Management Plan amendments to the Group for review and comment at least 90 days prior


to District submittal to DNR.


c. The District shall be responsible for administration and management


of the Adaptive Management Plan and related activities, including contract management.


The District will also serve as the primary contract laboratory for analysis of routine


parameters (e. g. phosphorus, TSS, and nitrogen) from water samples collected as part of


the adaptive management project, and can recover associated analytical costs from the


Group.


14. ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT PERMITTEE PROVISIONS


a. All MS4 Members participating in this Agreement are individually


responsible for meeting the TMDL baseline conditions for sediment (TSS) and phosphorus


control. The baseline condition for MS4 Members is 40% TSS control and 27%


phosphorus control. These reductions must be achieved within each stream reach that


they discharge to as identified in the TMDL. Trading with another MS4 member located


within the same stream reach that has exceeded the baseline condition can be used to meet


the baseline condition, but trade agreements are the responsibility of the participating


Members and are not addressed directly through this Agreement.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 20


b. All POTWs participating in this Agreement are required to meet an


annual average effluent phosphorus concentration of 0.6 mg/L by the end of the first full


WPDES permit term following implementation of the DNR approved Adaptive


Management Plan, and an annual average effluent concentration of 0.5 mg/L by the end of


the second full WPDES permit term following implementation of the DNR approved


Adaptive Management Plan.


c. In the event the Adaptive Management Plan is terminated by DNR


prior to the end of the original term of the Adaptive Management Plan, or if at the end of


the adaptive management period DNR determines that the phosphorus and sediment (TSS)


allocations identified in the TMDL have not been met for a stream reach, Members will be


individually responsible for taking any additional steps needed to achieve compliance with


phosphorus and sediment (TSS) reduction requirements in their WPDES permits. This


could include converting to a water quality trading program that is consistent with


applicable DNR guidance. Verifiable phosphorus and sediment (TSS) reductions or


“credits” achieved through the adaptive management project will be distributed to


Members proportionate to the Charges to Members under Section 9 of this Agreement, but


use in a water quality trading program is subject to applicable DNR guidance.


d. In the event municipal boundaries change during the term of this


Agreement, as land transfers from one municipality to another, the associated phosphorus


load reduction and the associated payment responsibility also transfers to the new


municipality.


e. Upon completion or termination of the adaptive management project,


any funds remaining in the segregated account for the Group following payment of all







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 21


project expenses, shall be returned to members of the Group in direct proportion to the


contribution made by each member of the Group.


15. NONDISCRIMINATION


In the performance of services under this Agreement, the Parties agree not to


discriminate against any employee or applicant because of race, religion, marital status, age


color, sex handicap, national origin or ancestry, income level or source of income, arrest


record or conviction record, less than honorable discharge, physical appearance, sexual


orientation, gender identity, political beliefs, or student status.


16. MISCELLANEOUS


a. Municipal Liability. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a


waiver of any limitations on municipal or state agency liability that may exist as a matter of


law, including but not limited to limitations in Wis. Stat. ch. 893.


b. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,


and the signatures of each party on separate copies of the Agreement shall be fully effective


to bind each of them to the Agreement with any other party that signs any separate copy of


the Agreement.


c. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior studies,


memoranda, letters or oral discussions or understandings about the participation of any of


the Members in this joint project. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the


Parties as to organization and the goals of the Group.







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 22


d. Amendment or Modification. No amendment or modification may


be made to this Agreement except in writing signed by a two thirds majority of all


Members.


e. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall, in general, be governed by


and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin.


f. Exclusive Benefit. This Agreement is for the exclusive benefit of


the Parties and their successors in interest and shall not be deemed to give any legal or


equitable right, remedy or claim to any other entity or person.


g. No Joint Venture. This Agreement does not establish or evidence a


Joint Venture or partnership between the Parties. No Party is liable for another Party's


actions as a result of entering into this Agreement.


h. Succession. All the terms, provisions and conditions herein


contained shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and their respective


successors and assigns, including future governing bodies of the respective Members.


i. Notice. Any notice required or given under this Agreement shall be


effective if mailed by U. S. mail, postage prepaid, to the representatives at the addresses


set forth after the signatures below, or any substituted address or representative as is filed


with the Secretary of the Executive Committee.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, by their duly authorized representatives,


have executed this Agreement on the dates set forth below:







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 23


By:


Date of Execution Municipality Name


(Authorized Representative Signature)


(Authorized Representative Typed Name)


(Authorized Representative Title)


Address:







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 24


Exhibit A:  Map of the Yahara Watershed







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 25







Intergovernmental Agreement-Final Page 26


Exhibit B:  Preliminary Cost Allocations
(Note: Section 9 outlines how preliminary costs can be adjusted)







Public Works Committee
Tuesday, February 16, 2016 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room – 381 E Main St.


Members Present: Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Sid Boersma, Tom Selsor and Mayor Olson


Absent: Paul Lawrence


Staff: Street Superintendent Karl Manthe, Planning Director Rodney Scheel and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Kevan Bard, Stephen Lawrence – Acting Market Manager & Lisa Reeves – Board Vice
President from SCFM and Charles Vervoot


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm


1) Communications: Manthe stated that they had a few snow events that kept crews busy.
Mayor Olson thanked the street department crew and Martin Briggs for helping with the
elections.


2) Activity Reports: Manthe reported:


 Christmas Tree collection was conducted during the month and crews chipped up 870
Christmas Trees.


 As mentioned above, crews had a couple snow events to take care of with plowing, salting
streets, and cleaning sidewalks.


 Crews have performed safety pruning, trimmed branches hanging over streets/sidewalks
and removed parkrow trees throughout the city. Private tree contractor has been assisting
city also with removing parkrow trees scheduled for removal throughout the city.


 Crews were out patching streets with cold patch throughout the city. The new “hotbox” unit
for heating the asphalt keeps the asphalt more workable during cold days.


 Street crews removed Christmas decorations and holiday banners on downtown street light
poles. Flags and new Arts & Culture banners will be put up later in the spring.


 Administrative Assistant is busy keeping inventories current for cemetery, trees and signs,
processing invoices, tracking yardwaste permits, sales, and usage, computerizing
employee timesheets, and addressing customer inquiries.


 Fleet Maintenance Manager continues to maintain city wide fleet to make sure it is available
for daily tasks. Fleet Manager repairs winter snow & ice removal equipment as required.


 Crews cleaned, washed and waxed trucks and equipment during the month.
 The Parks Department has been working on long range plan for CIP items to address park


improvements and maintenance. Parks crews has also cleaned city owned sidewalks
during snow events.


 Other routine tasks completed during the month include; dumping trash barrels downtown
and cemeteries, cleaning fleet and garage, check traffic signals, monitor water levels at
Fourth Street Dam, garage safety inspections (fire extinguishers, eye wash stations, exit
lights, fall protection).


Old Business:


3) Recommendation & Approval of Adaptive Management: Scheel informed the committee
that the city attorney had checked the document. Scheel also stated that this agreement is the
most cost effective method to meet the cities phosphorus goals and that the $11,000 cost will
start with the 2017 budget which will be paid from the stormwater utilities account. Mayor
Olson stated that Stoughton Utilities passed the plan at their monthly meeting.







Motion by Boersma, seconded by Selsor to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the Adaptive Management Plan for the Yahara Watershed as presented. Motion
carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


4) Veterans Park Tennis Court Discussion: Manthe recommended to the committee to 1)
paint both tennis and pickleball lines on the court, 2) monitor the activity for each game this
year and 3) suggested getting feedback from residents using the courts what, if any, issues
they had.


A neighboring property to the park has several issues concerning tennis balls damaging her
property, balls going into the street and if pickleball is allowed (would prefer that there be no
pickleball) there would be a noise factor and could there be something done to buffer the
sound. Mr. Lawrence stated that he couldn’t speak for his wife, but, his concern was a safety
issues with the balls going into the street as people tend to drive faster than the 25 mph speed
limit and that the road has a slight hill where the court is located.


Selsor feels that pickleball is becoming a very popular sport which the city should
accommodate and this is a public park. Other suggestions were: to put up a practice board,
plant shrubbery or install a net on the street side of the court. A member of the committee felt
that since the park is not well lighted, that shrubbery could make it unsafe as people would not
be able to see.


Another issue brought to the committee’s attention was that there were overhead wires that
should e addressed for safety purposes.


Action Item: Put on March agenda.


Agenda item # 7 was moved to accommodate citizens attending the meeting.


7) Request to Close Forrest Street for Farmers Market on Saturdays – Stoughton
Community Farmers Market: Kevin Baird from the Stoughton Community Farmers Market
(SCFM) discussed the intent of the market which is held on Saturdays – 8:00 am to Noon
starting May 21, 2016 through October 29, 2016. The location remains on Forrest Street (Main
to Bank Alley. The alleyway would remain open for bank customers. Baird also stated that the
insurance was good until June and will be renewed.


Motion by Boersma, seconded by Selsor to recommend to the Common Council to
allow the closure on Forrest St (Main to alley) to accommodate the Stoughton
Community Farmers Market on Saturdays May 21 – October 29, 2016. Motion carried 4-
0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


5) Downtown Snow Removal Discussion: Manthe discussed the joint Public Works /Public
Safety meeting that was held in January which numerous downtown business owners
attended and voiced their concerns. Manthe summarized three major areas of concern – 1)
turnaround time for when the street department cleans the downtown area, 2) snow is not
moved adequately around structures and 3) ramps that are shoveled and then filled in when
plows continually clean the streets


Manthe has already discussed with the operators to plow differently to help the business
owners. The business owners did request that the ordinance for snow removal be reduced
from the current 48 hours to 24 hours in the downtown area. Changing the snow ordinance
between downtown and residential may be problematic.


The committee fells there is “tweaking” that needs to be done on both sides and suggested
that there be a letter sent at a designated time each year as a reminder on the snow
procedures. Manthe also suggested that the Public Works & Public Safety meet again and
work with the business owners.







New Business:


6) Approve January 19, 2016 Meeting Minutes: Motion by Boersma seconded by Selsor to
approve minutes. Motion carried 3-0.


8) Requests to Change Gjertson Street Construction Project: This Street was scheduled for
pulverization in 2016 which would only address the pavement issues.


Manthe and Scheel have been working with the engineers and business owner on other
issues pertaining to the street including sidewalks, stormwater and safety issues. The
recommendation is to change this project to a full street construction project which is more
costly and not budgeted for. Manthe suggested trying to get funds from the Local Road
Improvement Program to help.


Motion by Boersma, seconded by Selsor to delay the project until more information is
received and is feasible.


9) 2016 Street Construction Projects – Review Design Plans: The bids for these projects
have been advertised and the bid opening will be on March 3 @ 11:00 am. Two bid packages
were sent out


1) Street reconstruction projects to include:


Van Buren St (Main St to Wilson), Wilson St (Van Buren St to Page St) and Clyde St (Madison
St to Van Buren St)


2) Street pulverization projects to include:


Kings Lynn Rd (Jackson St to Felland St), Chapin Ln (Roby Rd to Devonshire, Industrial Circle
(Ortega Dr to Commerce), King St (W South St to Kvamme0 and Brewer Court.


Manthe and Scheel displayed the designs of each street and discussed the different details of
each street.


10) Review Street Tree Ordinance 10-2: Scheel felt the ordinance needed more clarification to
insure that the intent of the ordinance is followed. There are also several discrepancies in
language and should the downtown be included as there are already different requirements for
being in a downtown setting. Scheel stated several situations as examples as how they would
be handled. The committee would like this item to be placed on the agenda for March to
discuss options and language.


11) Future Agenda Items: Veterans Park Tennis Court, Street Tree Installation Ordinance 10-2


Moved by Selsor, seconded by Boersma to adjourn the meeting at 7:55 pm. Motion
carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant – 2/17/2016





